Registration of a Charge

Company name: TSL EDUCATION FINANCE LIMITED

Company number: 05560466

Received for Electronic Filing: 24/07/2014



Details of Charge

Date of creation: 17/07/2014

Charge code: 0556 0466 0004

Persons entitled: WILMINGTON TRUST (LONDON) LIMITED

Brief description: THE COMPANY CHARGED BY WAY OF FIRST FIXED CHARGE ALL ITS

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY (ALTHOUGH NO FURTHER DETAILS ARE SPECIFIED IN THE CHARGE). FOR FURTHER DETAIL, SEE CLAUSE 4.8 OF THE CHARGE. THE COMPANY CHARGED BY WAY OF FIRST LEGAL MORTGAGE ALL ITS REAL PROPERTY (ALTHOUGH NO FURTHER DETAILS ARE SPECIFIED IN THE CHARGE). FOR FURTHER DETAIL, SEE

CLAUSE 4.1 OF THE CHARGE.

Contains fixed charge(s).

Contains floating charge(s) (floating charge covers all the property or

undertaking of the company).

Contains negative pledge.

Authentication of Form

This form was authorised by: a person with an interest in the registration of the charge.

Authentication of Instrument

Certification statement: I CERTIFY THAT SAVE FOR MATERIAL REDACTED PURSUANT

TO S.859G OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2006 THE ELECTRONIC COPY INSTRUMENT DELIVERED AS PART OF THIS APPLICATION FOR REGISTRATION IS A CORRECT COPY OF THE ORIGINAL

INSTRUMENT.

Certified by: SHEARMAN & STERLING (LONDON) LLP



CERTIFICATE OF THE REGISTRATION OF A CHARGE

Company number: 5560466

Charge code: 0556 0466 0004

The Registrar of Companies for England and Wales hereby certifies that a charge dated 17th July 2014 and created by TSL EDUCATION FINANCE LIMITED was delivered pursuant to Chapter A1 Part 25 of the Companies Act 2006 on 24th July 2014.

Given at Companies House, Cardiff on 31st July 2014

The above information was communicated by electronic means and authenticated by the Registrar of Companies under section 1115 of the Companies Act 2006





SHEARMAN & STERLINGLER

EXECUTION VERSION

Dated 17 July 2014

THE CHARGING COMPANIES LISTED IN SCHEDULE 1 TO THIS DEBENTURE as the Chargors

in favour of

WILMINGTON TRUST (LONDON) LIMITED as Security Agent

DEBENTURE

TABLE OF CONTENTS

. 41	Page	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION4	
2.	COVENANT TO PAY	
3.	COMMON PROVISIONS 8	
4.	FIXED SECURITY9	
5	FLOATING CHARGE	
6.	PROVISIONS AS TO SECURITY AND PERFECTION	
7.	FURTHER ASSURANCE14	
8.	SHARES AND INVESTMENTS	
9,	ACCOUNTS	
10.	MONETARY CLAIMS	
11.	INSURANCES	
12.	REAL PROPERTY	
13.	INFORMATION AND ACCESS	
14.	ENFORCEMENT OF SECURITY	
15.	EXTENSION OF POWERS AND RIGHT OF APPROPRIATION19	
16.	APPOINTMENT OF RECEIVER OR ADMINISTRATOR20	
17.	POWERS OF RECEIVERS 21	
18.	APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS	
19.	PROTECTION OF PURCHASERS	
20.	POWER OF ATTORNEY	
21.	EFFECTIVENESS OF SECURITY	
22.	PRIOR SECURITY INTERESTS	
23.	SUBSEQUENT SECURITY INTERESTS	
24.	SUSPENSE ACCOUNTS	
25.	RELEASE OF SECURITY	
26.	SET-OFF	
27.	CHANGES TO PARTIES	
28.	NOTICES	

29.	EXPENSES, STAMP TAXES AND INDEMNITY	29
30.	THE SECURITY AGENT	30
31.	GOVERNING LAW	30
32.	JURISDICTION	30
SCHI	EDULE 1 Chargors	32
SCHI	EDULE 2 Form of Legal Charge	33
SCHI	EDULE 3 Form of Notice of Security Interest to Account Bank	39
SCHI	EDULE 4 Form of Notice of Assignment of Specific Contract	42
SCHI	EDULE 5 Form of Notice of Assignment of Insurance Policy	45
SCHE	EDULE 6 Form of Security Accession Deed	47

THIS DEBENTURE is made by way of deed on 17 July 2014

BY:

- (1) The companies detailed in Schedule 1 (Chargors) as the Chargors (the "Chargors") in favour of
- (2) WILMINGTON TRUST (LONDON) LIMITED as trustee for each of the Secured Parties on the terms and conditions set out in the Secured Debt Documents, and in particular the Intercreditor Agreement (the "Security Agent").

IT IS AGREED as follows:

1. DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

1.1 **Definitions**

In this Debenture and each Legal Charge (as defined below):

"Acceleration Event" means a Credit Facility Acceleration Event, a Senior Secured Notes Acceleration Event or a Pari Passu Debt Acceleration Event.

"Account" means each of the accounts opened or maintained by any Chargor with the Security Agent, any bank, building society, financial institution or other person (including any renewal, redesignation, replacement, subdivision or subaccount of such account) and the debt or debts represented thereby.

"Administration Event" means:

- (a) the presentation of an application to the court for the making of an administration order in relation to any Chargor; or
- (b) the giving of written notice by any person (who is entitled to do so) of its intention to appoint an administrator of any Chargor or the filing of such a notice with the court.

"Agreed Security Principles" has the meaning given to that term in the Facilities Agreement.

"Charged Assets" means all of the assets and undertaking of each Chargor which from time to time are the subject of any Security created or expressed to be created by it in favour of the Security Agent by or pursuant to this Debenture and any Legal Charge.

"Charges" means Security from time to time created or expressed to be created by or pursuant to this Debenture.

"Collateral Rights" means all rights, powers and remedies of the Security Agent provided by or pursuant to this Debenture and/or any Legal Charge or by law.

"Excluded Assets" means, if the Parent elects that the relevant Senior Notes Creditor will benefit from Senior Notes Only Security pursuant to clause 8.1(b) of the Intercreditor Agreement, any and all assets of a Chargor that are subject to Senior Notes Only Security.

"Facilities Agreement" means the facilities agreement dated on or about the date of this Debenture between, amongst others, TSL Education Group Limited as Parent, Goldman Sachs Bank USA and Jefferies Finance LLC as Arrangers and Wilmington Trust (London) Limited as Security Agent and Agent.

"Fixed Security" means any mortgage, fixed charge or assignment expressed to be constituted by or pursuant to Clause 4 (Fixed Security) of this Debenture.

"Insurance Policy" means any policy of insurance (including life insurance or assurance) in which any Chargor may from time to time have an interest (as amended or supplemented).

"Intellectual Property" means any patents, trade marks, service marks, designs, business and trade names, copyrights, design rights, moral rights, inventions, confidential information, knowhow and other intellectual property rights and interests, whether registered or unregistered, and the benefit of all applications and rights to use such assets in which any Chargor may from time to time have an interest.

"Intercreditor Agreement" means the intercreditor agreement dated on or about the date of this Deed between, amongst others, Goldman Sachs Bank USA and Jefferies Finance LLC as Arrangers, certain entities as listed therein as Debtors, TSL Education Group Limited as Parent, TES Finance plo as Senior Secured Notes Issuer, and Wilmington Trust (London) Limited as Original RCF Agent and Security Agent.

"Investments" means any:

- (a) stocks, shares, debentures and certificates of deposit and other instruments creating or acknowledging indebtedness, including alternative finance investment bonds (but not including the Shares);
- (b) interests in collective investment schemes, in whatever form or jurisdiction any such scheme is established, including partnership interests;
- (c) warrants and other instruments entitling the holder to subscribe for or acquire any investments described in paragraphs (a) or (b) above;
- (d) certificates and other instruments conferring contractual or property rights (other than options) in respect of the investments in paragraphs (a), (b) or (c) above; and
- (e) options to acquire any investments described in paragraphs (a), (b), (c) or (d) above,

but excluding any Investments in Joint Ventures, in each case whether held directly by or to the order of any Chargor or by any trustee, nominee, custodian, fiduciary or clearance system on its behalf (including all rights against any such trustee, nominee, custodian, fiduciary or clearance system including, without limitation, any contractual rights or any right to delivery of all or any part of the Investments from time to time).

"Joint Venture" has the meaning given to that term in the Facilities Agreement.

"Legal Charge" means a charge by way of legal mortgage in respect of all or any part of the Real Property between any Chargor and the Security Agent substantially in the form of Schedule 2 (Form of Legal Charge).

"Monetary Claims" means any book and other debts and monetary claims owing to any Chargor and any proceeds of such debts and claims (including any claims or sums of money deriving from or in relation to any Intellectual Property, any Investment, the proceeds of any Insurance Policy (to the extent not validly and effectively assigned pursuant to Clause 4.12 (Assignment of Insurance Policies), any court order or judgment, any contract or agreement to which any Chargor is a party and any other assets, property, rights or undertaking of that Chargor).

"Mortgaged Property" means the freehold and leasehold property specified in the schedule to each Legal Charge.

"Notice of Assignment" means a notice of assignment in substantially the form set out in Schedule 4 (Form of Notice of Assignment of Specific Contract) or Schedule 5 (Form of Notice of Assignment of Insurance Policy).

"Notice of Charge" means a notice of charge in substantially the form set out in Schedule 3 (Form of Notice of Security Interest to Account Bank).

"Real Property" means (including as provided in Clause 1.8 (Real Property)), the Mortgaged Property and any present or future freehold or leasehold or immovable property and any other interest in land or buildings and any rights relating thereto in which any Chargor has an interest.

"Receiver" means a receiver, receiver and manager or, where permitted by law, an administrative receiver and that term will include any appointee made under a joint or several appointment.

"Related Rights" means, in relation to any asset:

- (a) the proceeds of sale or rental of any part of that asset;
- (b) all rights under any licence, agreement for sale or agreement for lease in respect of that asset;
- (c) all rights, powers, benefits, claims, causes of action, contracts, warranties, remedies, security, guarantees, indemnities or covenants for title in respect of or derived from that asset; and
- (d) any monies and proceeds paid or payable in respect of that asset.

"Secured Obligations" has the meaning given to that term in the Intercreditor Agreement.

"Security Accession Deed" means a deed of accession to this Debenture in the form set out in Schedule 6 (Form of Security Accession Deed) or such other form as the Security Agent thinks fit.

"Security Period" means the period beginning on the date of this Debenture and ending on the date on which the Security Agent is satisfied that the Secured Obligations have been irrevocably and unconditionally discharged in full and no Secured Party is under any further actual or contingent obligation to make advances or provide other financial accommodation to any Chargor or any other person under any of the Secured Debt Documents.

"Secured Debt Documents" means the Credit Facility Documents, the Senior Secured Notes Documents, the Hedging Agreements and the Pari Passu Debt Documents.

"Shares" means all of the issued share capital held by, to the order, or on behalf, of any Chargor at any time, but excluding any Shares in Joint Ventures.

"Specific Contracts" means any loan made to another member of the Group (but excluding loans made to any Joint Ventures) and any other contract that may from time to time be identified in writing as a Specific Contract by the Security Agent and the relevant Chargor.

"Tangible Movemble Property" means any plant, machinery, office equipment, computers, vehicles, furniture, fittings and other chattels (excluding any for the time being forming part of any Chargor's stock in trade or work in progress).

1.2 Intercreditor Agreement

Unless defined in this Debenture, or the context otherwise requires, a term defined in the Intercreditor Agreement has the same meaning in this Debenture and each Legal Charge, or any notice given under or in connection with this Debenture or any Legal Charge.

1.3 Construction

In this Debenture or, as applicable, any Legal Charge:

- (a) the rules of interpretation contained in clauses 1.2 (Construction) and 1.3 (Currency Symbols and definitions) of the Intercreditor Agreement shall apply to the construction of this Debenture and each Legal Charge, or in any notice given under or in connection with this Debenture or any Legal Charge;
- (b) any reference to the "Security Agent", the "Secured Parties" or a "Chargor" shall be construed so as to include its or their (and any subsequent) successors in title, permitted assigns and permitted transferees in accordance with their respective interests and, in the case of the Security Agent, any person for the time being appointed as Security Agent in accordance with the Intercreditor Agreement; and
- (c) references in this Debenture to any Clause or Schedule shall be to a clause or schedule contained in this Debenture.

1.4 Deed

This document is to take effect as a deed notwithstanding that the Security Agent has executed under hand only.

1.5 Incorporation of provisions into each Legal Charge

Clauses 6.1 (Negative pledge and restriction on dealings), 7.1 (Further assurance), 14 (Enforcement of Security), 15 (Extension of Powers and Right of Appropriation), 16 (Appointment of Receiver or Administrator), 17 (Powers of Receivers), 20 (Power of Attorney), 25 (Release of Security), 28 (Notices), 29 (Expenses, stamp taxes and indemnity), 30 (The Security Agent) and 32 (Jurisdiction) of this Debenture are deemed to form part of each Legal Charge as if expressly incorporated into each Legal Charge and as if references in those Clauses to (a) this Debenture were references to that Legal Charge and (b) the Charged Assets were references to the assets of each Chargor from time to time charged in favour of, or assigned (whether at law, or in equity) to the Security Agent by or pursuant to that Legal Charge.

1.6 Conflict

It is agreed that each Legal Charge is supplemental to this Debenture and to the extent the provisions of this Debenture conflict with those of any Legal Charge, the provisions of that Legal Charge shall prevail. It is also agreed that the provisions of the Intercreditor Agreement shall prevail to the extent there is a conflict or inconsistency with the provisions of the Debenture or any Legal Charge.

1.7 Present and future assets

- (a) A reference in this Debenture or any Legal Charge to any Mortgaged Property, Charged Asset or other asset includes, unless the contrary intention appears, present and future Mortgaged Property, Charged Assets and other assets.
- (b) The absence of or incomplete details of any Charged Assets in any Schedule shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any Security under this Debenture or any Legal Charge.

1.8 Real Property

- (a) A reference in this Debenture or in any Legal Charge to a mortgage, assignment or charge of any freehold, leasehold or commonhold property includes all buildings, fixtures and fittings from time to time on or forming part of that property and all Related Rights.
- (b) The terms of the Secured Debt Documents are incorporated into this Debenture, each Legal Charge and each other Secured Debt Document to the extent required for any purported disposition of any Real Property contained in this Deed to be a valid disposition in accordance with section 2(1) of the Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1989.

1.9 Separate Security

Clauses 4.1 (Fixed charge over Real Property) to 4.12 (Assignment of Insurance Policies) shall be construed as creating a separate and distinct mortgage, fixed charge or assignment over each relevant asset within any particular class of assets defined in this Debenture or any Legal Charge and the failure to create an effective mortgage, fixed charge or assignment (whether arising out of this Debenture or any Legal Charge or any act or omission by any party) over any one asset shall not affect the nature or validity of the mortgage, charge or assignment imposed on any other asset whether within that same class of assets or not.

1.10 Security Agent assumes no obligation

The Security Agent shall not be under any obligation in relation to the Charged Assets as a consequence of this Debenture or any Legal Charge and each Chargor shall at all times remain liable to perform all obligations in respect of the Charged Assets.

1.11 Third party rights

A person who is not a Party has no right under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 to enforce or to enjoy the benefit of any term of this Debenture.

2. COVENANT TO PAY

2.1 Coverant to pay

Each Chargor covenants with the Security Agent that it shall, on demand of the Security Agent pay, discharge and satisfy the Secured Obligations when they fall due and payable in accordance with the terms of the Secured Debt Documents, and indemnify the Security Agent and each of the Secured Parties against any losses, costs, charges, expenses and liabilities arising from any breach or failure to pay, discharge and satisfy the Secured Obligations in accordance with their respective terms.

2.2 Default interest

If any Chargor fails to pay any amount payable by it under this Debenture or any Legal Charge on its due date, interest shall accrue on the overdue amount (both before and after judgment) calculated and payable in accordance with the rate and in the manner specified in the Secured Debt Documents.

3. COMMON PROVISIONS

3.1 Common provisions as to all Security

All the Security constituted by or pursuant to this Debenfure and any Legal Charge:

- (a) is created in favour of the Security Agent as trustee for the Secured Parties and the Security Agent shall hold the benefit of this Debenture and any Legal Charge and the Security created by or pursuant to them on trust for the Secured Parties;
- (b) is continuing Security for the payment and discharge of all the Secured Obligations; and
- (c) does not constitute or purport to constitute any Security in respect of any Excluded Assets.

3.2 Consent for Fixed Security

Each Chargor creates each Fixed Security except to the extent the grant of such Fixed Security would be unlawful or require the consent of any person other than a member of the Group or any Holding Company of the Parent.

4. FIXED SECURITY

4.1 Fixed charge over Real Property

Each Chargor charges, by way of first fixed charge, all of its rights, title and interest from time to time in and to all the Real Property and all Related Rights, except for:

- (a) leasehold interests of less than 15 years unless the lease contains an option to acquire the freehold which has a market value of £2,500,000 or more; or
- (b) freehold interests which have a market value of less than £2,500,000.

4.2 Fixed charge over Tangible Moveable Property

Each Chargor charges, by way of first fixed charge, all of its rights, title and interest from time to time in and to the Tangible Moveable Property and all Related Rights.

4.3 Fixed charge over Monetary Claims

Each Chargor charges, by way of first fixed charge, all of its rights, title and interest from time to time in and to all Monetary Claims and all Related Rights other than any claims which are otherwise subject to a fixed charge or assignment (at law or in equity) pursuant to this Debenture.

4.4 Fixed charge over contracts

Each Chargor charges, by way of first fixed charge, all of its rights, title and interest from time to time in and to any contract or agreement to which that Chargor is a party (except for the Specific Contracts to the extent validly and effectively assigned pursuant to Clause 4.11 (Assignment of Specific Contracts)), each of its interest or currency rate swap, cap, floor, collar or option transactions and all Related Rights.

4.5 Fixed charge over Investments

Each Chargor charges, by way of first fixed charge, all of its rights, title and interest from time to time in and to the Investments and all dividends, interest and other monies payable in respect of those Investments and all Related Rights (whether derived by way of redemption, bonus, preference, options, substitution, conversion, compensation or otherwise).

4.6 Fixed charge over Shares

Each Chargor charges, by way of first fixed charge, all of its rights, title and interest from time to time in and to the Shares and all dividends, interest and other monies payable in respect of those Shares and all Related Rights (whether derived by way of redemption, bonus, preference, options, substitution, conversion, compensation or otherwise).

4.7 Fixed charge over goodwill

Each Chargor charges, by way of first fixed charge, all of its rights, title and interest from time to time in and to any goodwill, rights and claims in relation to the uncalled capital of that Chargor.

4.8 Fixed charge over Intellectual Property

Each Chargor charges by way of first fixed charge all its rights, title and interest present and future in and to Intellectual Property of that Chargor and all Related Rights.

4.9 Fixed charge over Accounts

Each Chargor charges by way of first fixed charge all its rights, title and interest present and future in and to Accounts of that Chargor and all Related Rights.

4.10 Fixed charge over Insurance Policies

Each Chargor charges, by way of first fixed charge, all of its rights, title and interest from time to time in and to each Insurance Policy of that Chargor (except to the extent validly and effectively assigned pursuant to Clause 4.12 (Assignment of Insurance Policies)) and all Related Rights.

4.11 Assignment of Specific Contracts

Each Chargor assigns and agrees to assign absolutely, all of its rights, claims, title and interest from time to time in and to the Specific Contracts of that Chargor and all Related Rights.

4.12 Assignment of Insurance Policies

Each Chargor assigns and agrees to assign absolutely, all of its rights, claims, title and interest from time to time in and to the proceeds of each Insurance Policy of that Chargor and all Related Rights.

5. FLOATING CHARGE

5.1 Floating charge

- (a) Each Chargor charges by way of first floating charge in favour of the Security Agent all present and future assets and undertaking of that Chargor, except to the extent the grant of such floating charge would be unlawful or require the consent of any person other than a member of the Group or any Holding Company of the Parent.
- (b) The floating charge created pursuant to paragraph (a) of Clause 5.1 above shall be deferred in point of priority to all Fixed Security validly and effectively created by that Chargor under the Secured Debt Documents in favour of the Security Agent as security for the Secured Obligations.
- (c) Paragraph 14 of Schedule B1 to the Insolvency Act 1986 applies to the floating charge created pursuant to paragraph (a) of Clause 5.1 above.

5.2 Crystallisation: by notice

The Security Agent may at any time by notice in writing to any Charger convert the floating charge created pursuant to Clause 5.1 (*Floating Charge*) with immediate effect into a fixed charge as regards any property or assets specified in the notice if:

- (a) an Acceleration Event has occurred;
- (b) the Security Agent reasonably considers that any of the Charged Assets may be in jeopardy or in danger of being seized or sold pursuant to any form of legal process;
- (c) the Security Agent reasonably considers that it is desirable in order to protect the priority of the security; or
- (d) any Chargor requests the Security Agent to exercise any of its powers under this Debenture or any Legal Charge.

5.3 Crystallisation: automatic

Notwithstanding Clause 5.2 (Crystallisation: by notice) and without prejudice to any law which may have a similar effect, the floating charge created pursuant to Clause 5.1 (Floating Charge) will automatically be converted (without notice) with immediate effect into a fixed charge as regards all the assets subject to the floating charge if:

- (a) any Chargor creates or attempts to create any Security (other than any Security permitted under the terms of each of the Secured Debt Documents), over any of the Charged Assets;
- (b) any person levies or attempts to levy any distress, execution or other process against any of the Charged Assets;
- (c) an Administration Event occurs;
- (d) a Receiver is appointed over all or any of the Charged Assets,
- (e) a meeting is convened for the passing of a resolution for the voluntary winding-up of the Chargor;
- (f) a petition is presented for the compulsory winding-up of any Chargor;
- (g) a provisional liquidator is appointed to any Chargor, or
- (h) a resolution is passed or an order is made for the dissolution or reorganisation of any Chargor,

or any analogous procedure or step is taken in any jurisdiction, unless, in respect of sub-clause (e) and (h) above, and only for so long as such action does not constitute an event of default under any of the Secured Debt Documents.

6. PROVISIONS AS TO SECURITY AND PERFECTION

6.1 Negative pledge and restriction on dealings

No Chargor shall at any time during the Security Period create or permit to subsist any Security over all or any part of the Charged Assets or effect a Disposal with any part of the Charged Assets so long as such action does not constitute an event of default under any Secured Debt Document.

6.2 Notice of Security: Specific Contracts and Insurance Policies

- (a) Subject to Clause 6.2(c) below, each Chargor shall, within 10 Business Days of the refevant Security being granted over a Specific Contract, deliver to the Security Agent (or procure the delivery of) a Notice of Assignment duly executed by, or on behalf of, the Chargor in relation to the Specific Contracts.
- (b) Each Chargor shall use reasonable endeavours to procure from each recipient of such a Notice of Assignment served pursuant to (a) above, an acknowledgement in the form set out therein, within 20 Business Days of service. If the Chargor has used its reasonable endeavours but has not been able to obtain acknowledgement, its obligation to obtain acknowledgement shall cease on the expiry of that 20 Business Days period.
- (c) In relation to Specific Contracts which are loans made to another member of the Group which are Obligors, the execution of this Debenture or any accession deeds to this Debenture shall constitute notice to and acknowledgement by the relevant debtor under each of such loans of the matters set out in paragraphs 1 8 of Schedule 4 (Form of Notice of Assignment of Specific Contract).

- (d) Each Chargor shall, after an Acceleration Event which is continuing, deliver to the Security Agent (or procure the delivery of) a Notice of Assignment to the relevant insurer, broker and/or underwriter of such Insurance Policy duly executed by, or on behalf of, the Chargor in relation to such Insurance Policy.
- (e) Each Chargor shall use reasonable endeavours to procure from each recipient of such a Notice of Assignment served pursuant to (d) above, an acknowledgement in the form set out therein, within 20 Business Days of service. If the Chargor has used its reasonable endeavours but has not been able to obtain acknowledgement, its obligation to obtain acknowledgement shall cease on the expiry of that 20 Business Days period.

6.3 Notice of Security: Accounts

- (a) Each Chargor shall, within 10 Business Days of the relevant Security being granted over an Account, deliver to the Security Agent (or procure the delivery of) a Notice of Charge duly executed by, or on behalf of, such Chargor in respect of each Account.
- (b) Each Chargor shall use reasonable endeavours to procure from each account bank, building society, financial institution or other person with which any Account is opened or maintained, an acknowledgement in the form set out in such Notice of Charge, within 20 Business Days of such Account being identified as an Account. If the Chargor has used its reasonable endeavours but has not been able to obtain acknowledgement, its obligation to obtain acknowledgement shall cease on the expiry of that 20 Business Days period.
- (c) The execution of this Debenture by each Chargor and the Security Agent shall constitute notice to any Lender of the charge created over any Account opened or maintained with such Lender.

6.4 Notice of Security: other assets

- (a) Each Chargor shall, after an Acceleration Event, promptly deliver to the Security Agent (or procure the delivery of) a notice (in respect of an Account in substantially the form set out in Schedule 3 (Form of Notice of Security Interest to Account Bank), in respect of a contract substantially in the form set out in Schedule 4 (Form of Notice of Assignment of Specific Contract), in respect of a policy of insurance in substantially the form set out in Schedule 5 (Form of Notice of Assignment of Insurance Policy) or in such form as the Security Agent may specify) duly executed by, or on behalf of, such Chargor in relation to any asset (other than the Specific Contracts) which is the subject of the Fixed Security and any floating charge which is converted into a fixed charge pursuant to Clauses 5.2 (Crystallisation: by notice) and 5.3 (Crystallisation: automatic).
- (b) Each Chargor shall use reasonable endeavours to procure from each recipient of such a Notice of Charge or Notice of Assignment an acknowledgement in the form set out therein.

6.5 Deposit of documents of title: Investments

Promptly after an Acceleration Event, each Chargor shall deposit with the Security Agent (or procure the deposit of) all of the Investments and any certificates and other documents of title representing the Investments to which that Chargor (or its nominee(s)) is or becomes entitled, together with any other document which the Security Agent may reasonably request (in such form and executed in such manner as the Security Agent may reasonably require (including stock transfer forms or other instruments of transfer executed in blank by it or on its behalf), with a view to perfecting or improving its security over the Investments or to registering any Investment in its name or the name of any nominee(s).

6.6 Deposit of share certificates

The Chargor shall promptly:

- (a) in respect of any Shares, deposit with the Security Agent (or procure the deposit of) all certificates and other documents of title or evidencing title in respect of each of the Shares and stock transfer forms (executed in blank by it or on its behalf) together with a certified copy of the Register of Members with a view to perfecting or maintaining the Charges over the Shares or registering any Shares in the name of the Security Agent or its nominee; and
- (b) upon the accrual, offer or issue of any stocks, shares, warrants or other securities in respect of or derived from the Shares (or upon acquiring any interest therein), notify the Security Agent of that occurrence and deposit with the Security Agent (or procure the deposit of) (i) all certificates or other documents of title representing such items and (ii) such stock transfer forms or other instruments of transfer (executed in blank by it or on its behalf) in respect thereof as the Security Agent may request.

All documents required by this Clause 6.6 shall be in a form as the Security Agent shall reasonably require.

6.7 Deposit of title deeds

Each Chargor shall:

- (a) promptly on the request of the Security Agent deposit with the Security Agent (or procure the deposit of) all deeds, certificates and other documents constituting or evidencing title to any Real Property charged pursuant to Clause 4.1 (Fixed charge over Real Property); and
- (b) at any time thereafter deposit with the Security Agent (or procure the deposit of) any further such deeds, certificates and other documents in relation to Real Property described in Clause 6.7(a) above, promptly upon coming into possession of any of those items.

6.8 Application to the Land Registry

Each Chargor hereby consents to an application being made to the Land Registry to enter the following restriction in the proprietorship register of any registered land at any time forming part of the Real Property charged pursuant to Clause 4.1 (Fixed charge over Real Property):

"No disposition of the registered estate by the proprietor of the registered estate, or by the proprietor of any registered charge, not being a charge registered before the entry of this restriction, is to be registered without a written consent signed by the proprietor for the time being of the charge dated [•] in favour of [•] referred to in the charges register or their conveyancer."

6.9 Registration of Intellectual Property

Each Chargor shall:

- (a) be free to deal with all Intellectual Property in the course of its business until the occurrence of an Acceleration Event, in accordance with the Agreed Security Principles.
- (b) subject to the Agreed Security Principles in the Secured Debt Documents, execute all such documents and do all such acts as the Security Agent may reasonably require to record the interest of the Security Agent in any registers relating to any registered Intellectual Property within 15 Business Days from the Security being created over such Intellectual Property.

6.10 Further advances

- (a) Subject to the terms of the Secured Debt Documents, each Lender is under an obligation to make further advances to each Chargor and that obligation will be deemed to be incorporated in this Debenture as if set out in this Debenture.
- (b) Each Chargor consents to an application being made to the Land Registry to enter the obligation to make further advances on the Charges Register of any registered land forming part of the Charged Assets.

7. FURTHER ASSURANCE

7.1 Further assurance

- (a) Subject to the Agreed Security Principles, each Chargor shall promptly, at its own cost, enterinto, execute and complete a Legal Charge over any Real Property in England and Wales (except for (i) leasehold interests of less than 15 years (unless the lease contains an option to acquire the freehold which has a market value of £2,500,000 or more) or (ii) freehold interests which have a market value of less than £2,500,000) not already the subject of a registrable Legal Charge and do all such acts or execute all such documents (including assignments, transfers, mortgages, charges, notarisations, registrations, notices and instructions) as the Security Agent may reasonably specify (and in such form as the Security Agent may reasonably require) in favour of the Security Agent or its nominec(s):
 - (i) to create, perfect and/or protect the Security created or intended to be created in respect of the Charged Assets (which may include the execution by that Chargor of a mortgage, charge or assignment over all or any of the assets constituting, or intended to constitute, the Charged Assets) or for the exercise of the Collateral Rights;
 - (ii) to confer on the Security Agent Security over any asset or undertaking of that Chargor located in any jurisdiction outside England and Wales equivalent or similar to the Security intended to be conferred by or pursuant to this Debenture and each Legal Charge to which it is a party; and/or
 - (iii) to facilitate the realisation of the Charged Assets.

7.2 Necessary action

Each Chargor shall take all such reasonable action as is available to it (including making all filings and registrations and applying for relief against forfeiture) as may be necessary or as may reasonably be requested by the Security Agent for the purpose of the creation, perfection, protection or maintenance of any Security conferred or intended to be conferred on the Security Agent by or pursuant to this Debenture and each Legal Charge.

7.3 Consents

- (a) Each Chargor shall, as soon as possible, use reasonable endeavours to obtain any consents necessary or to remove any restriction on the creation of Security (in each case in form and substance satisfactory to the Security Agent, acting reasonably) to enable any material assets (save in respect of Real Property) of that Chargor to be the subject of the relevant Fixed Security pursuant to this Debenture and each Legal Charge.
- (b) Each Chargor shall, as soon as possible, use reasonable endeavours to obtain any landlord's consent necessary to enable any Real Property of that Chargor to be the subject of the relevant Fixed Security pursuant to Clause 4.1 (Fixed Charge over Real Property) of this Debenture and each legal charge pursuant to Clause 7.1(a) (Further Assurance) of this Debenture.

(c) Immediately upon obtaining any such consent or removing any such restriction in paragraphs
(a) and (b) above, the asset concerned will become subject to that Fixed Security and each relevant Chargor shall promptly deliver a copy of such consent or evidence of such removal to the Security Agent.

8. SHARES AND INVESTMENTS

8.1 Dividends prior to an Acceleration Event

Prior to an Acceleration Event, each Chargor shall be entitled to receive all dividends, interest and other monies or distributions of an income nature arising from the Shares.

8.2 Dividends after an Acceleration Event

Upon the occurrence of an Acceleration Event, the Security Agent may, at its discretion, in the name of each relevant Chargor or otherwise and without any further consent or authority from the relevant Chargor, apply all dividends, interest and other monies arising from the Shares as though they were the proceeds of sale in accordance with Clause 18 (Application of Proceeds).

8.3 Voting rights prior to Security Agent Notice

Prior to the giving of notice pursuant to Clause 8.4 (Voting rights after Security Agent Notice) but subject to Clause 8.6 (Shares: Voting rights), each Chargor shall be entitled to exercise all voting rights in relation to the Shares.

8.4 Voting rights after Security Agent Notice

Subject to Clause 8.5 (Waiver of voting rights by Security Agent), upon the occurrence of an Acceleration Event, the Security Agent may (but without having any obligation to do so) give notice to any relevant Chargor (with a copy to the Agent) that this Clause 8.4 will apply. With effect from the giving of that notice the Security Agent may, at its discretion, in the name of each relevant Chargor or otherwise and without any further consent or authority from that Chargor:

- (a) exercise (or refrain from exercising) any voting rights in respect of the Shares; and
- (b) exercise (or refrain from exercising) the powers and rights conferred on or exercisable by the legal or beneficial owner of the Shares including the right, in relation to any company whose shares or other securities are included in the Shares, to concur or participate in:
 - the reconstruction, amalgamation, sale or other disposal of such company or any of its assets or undertaking (including the exchange, conversion or reissue of any shares or securities as a consequence thereof);
 - (ii) the release, modification or variation of any rights or liabilities attaching to such shares or securities; and
 - (iii) the exercise, renunciation or assignment of any right to subscribe for any shares or securities.

in each case in the manner and on the terms the Security Agent thinks fit, and the proceeds of any such action shall form part of the Shares.

8.5 Waiver of voting rights by Security Agent

(a) The Security Agent may, in its absolute discretion and without any consent or authority from the other Secured Parties or any relevant Chargor, at any time, by notice to any relevant Chargor (which notice shall be irrevocable), with a copy to the Agent, elect to give up the

right to exercise (or refrain from exercising) all voting rights and powers in respect of the Shares conferred or to be conferred on the Security Agent pursuant to Clause 8.4 (Voting rights after Security Agent Notice) and the other Secured Parties unconditionally waive any rights they may otherwise have to require the Security Agent not to make such election or to require the Security Agent to indemnify, compensate or otherwise make good for any losses, costs or liabilities incurred by any of them in relation to or as a consequence of the Security Agent making such election.

(b) Once a notice has been issued by the Security Agent under paragraph (a) of this Clause 8.5, on and from the date of such notice the Security Agent shall cease to have the rights to exercise or refrain from exercising voting rights and powers in respect of the Shares conferred or to be conferred on it pursuant to Clause 8.4 (Voting rights after Security Agent Notice) or any other provision of this Debenture and all such rights will be exercisable by the relevant Chargor. Each relevant Chargor shall be entitled, on and from the date of such notice, to exercise all voting rights and powers in relation to the Shares.

8.6 Shares: Voting rights

No Chargor shall exercise (and shall procure that any nominee acting on its behalf does not exercise) its voting rights in relation to the Shares in any manner which adversely affects the validity or enforceability of the Security created hereby or causes an Event of Default to occur.

8.7 Investments and Shares: Payment of calls

Each Chargor shall pay when due all calls or other payments which may be or become due in respect of any of the Investments and Shares, and in any case of default by it in such payment, the Security Agent may (but is not obliged to), if it thinks fit, make such payment on its behalf in which case any sums paid by the Security Agent shall be reimbursed by each relevant Chargor to the Security Agent on demand and shall carry interest from the date of payment by the Security Agent until reimbursed in accordance with Clause 2.2 (Default interest).

8.8 Investments: Exercise of rights

No Chargor shall exercise any of its rights and powers in relation to any of the Investments in any manner which would adversely affect the validity or enforceability, or prejudice the ability of the Security Agent to realise, the Security created hereby, or cause an Event of Default to occur.

9. ACCOUNTS

9.1 Accounts: Notification and variation

- (a) Each Chargor shall deliver to the Security Agent on the date of this Deed (and, if any change occurs thereafter or any Account becomes charged by this Debenture thereafter, on the date falling five Business Days after such Account has been charged), details of each Account opened or maintained by it with any bank, building society, financial institution or other person (other than with the Security Agent).
- (b) No Chargor shall, without the Security Agent's prior written consent, permit or agree to any variation of the rights attaching to, or close, following the occurrence of an Acceleration Event, any Account.

9.2 Accounts: Operation before an Acceleration Event

Each Chargor shall, prior to the occurrence of an Acceleration Event, be entitled to receive, withdraw or otherwise transfer or deal with any credit balance from time to time on any Account.

9.3 Accounts: Operation after an Acceleration Event

After the occurrence of an Acceleration Event no Chargor shall be entitled to receive, withdraw or otherwise transfer any credit balance from time to time on any Account except with the prior consent of the Security Agent.

9.4 Accounts: Application of monies

The Security Agent shall, upon the occurrence of an Acceleration Event, be entitled without notice to apply, transfer or set-off any or all of the credit balances from time to time on any Account in or towards the payment or other satisfaction of all or part of the Secured Obligations in accordance with Clause 18 (Application of Proceeds).

10. MONETARY CLAIMS

10.1 Monetary Claims: dealings before an Acceleration Event

Each Chargor shall, prior to the occurrence of an Acceleration Event, be entitled to get in, realise, dispose of and deal with Monetary Claims.

10.2 Monetary Claims: dealings after an Acceleration Event

After an Acceleration Event, each Chargor shall, at its own expense, promptly do all such acts and things as the Security Agent may require for creating a fixed charge over Monetary Claims or, at any time after the Charges have become enforceable following an Acceleration Event, a legal assignment of Monetary Claims.

11. INSURANCES

11.1 Insurance: Undertakings

After an Acceleration Event, each Chargor shall:

- (a) cause each insurance policy or policies relating to the Charged Assets other than any Insurance Policy which has been the subject of a Notice of Assignment pursuant to Clause 6 (Provisions as to Security and Perfection) to contain (in form and substance satisfactory to the Security Agent, acting reasonably) an endorsement naming the Security Agent as sole loss payee in respect of all claims until such time as the Security Agent notifies the insurer(s) to the contrary; and
- (b) subject to the provisions of any lease of the Charged Assets, deposit all Insurance Policies relating to the Charged Assets with the Security Agent.

11.2 Insurance: Default

If any Chargor defaults in complying with Clause 11.1 (Insurance: Undertakings), the Security Agent may (without any obligation to do so) effect or renew any such insurance on such terms, in such name(s) and in such amount(s) as it reasonably considers appropriate, and all monies spent by the Security Agent in doing so shall be reimbursed by the relevant Chargor to the Security Agent on demand and shall carry interest from the date of payment by the Security Agent until reimbursed in accordance with Clause 2.2 (Default interest).

11.3 Application of Insurance proceeds: before an Acceleration Event

Each Chargor shall, prior to the occurrence of an Acceleration Event, be entitled to receive, dispose of or deal with any Insurance proceeds.

11.4 Application of Insurance proceeds; after an Acceleration Event

All monies received under any Insurance Policies relating to the Charged Assets shall (subject to the rights and claims of any person having prior rights to such monies) after an Acceleration Event, be held upon trust for the Security Agent pending payment to the Security Agent for application in accordance with Clause 18 (Application of Proceeds).

12. REAL PROPERTY

12.1 Property: Notification

Each Chargor shall immediately notify the Security Agent of any contract, conveyance, transfer or other disposition for the acquisition by that Chargor (or its nominee(s)) of any Real Property that is required to be charged pursuant to Clause 4.1 (Fixed Charge over Real Property) or subject of a Legal Charge pursuant to Clause 7.1(a) (Further Assurance) of this Debenture.

12.2 Lease covenants

Each Chargor shall, in relation to any lease or other right to occupy to which all or any part of the Charged Assets is at any time subject, pay the rents (if the lessee) and observe and perform in all material respects the covenants, conditions and obligations imposed on the lessor (if the lessor) or on the lessee (if the lessee), unless failure to do so would not result in a breach of Clause 25 (General Undertakings) of the Facilities Agreement.

12.3 Entitlement to remedy

- (a) If any Chargor fails to comply with any of the undertakings contained in this Clause 12, the Security Agent and/or any Receiver shall be entitled (with such agents, contractors and others as it sees fit), to do such things as may in the reasonable opinion of the Security Agent and/or any Receiver be required to remedy such failure and all monies spent by the Security Agent and/or any Receiver in doing so shall be reimbursed by the relevant Chargor on demand with interest from the date of payment by the Security Agent and/or any Receiver until reimbursed in accordance with Clause 2.2 (Default interest).
- (b) The exercise by the Security Agent and/or any Receiver of its powers under this Clause 12.3 or otherwise by reason of the Security Agent and/or any Receiver entering into possession of any Charged Asset, shall not render the Security Agent and/or any Receiver liable to account as mortgagee in possession or for any loss or realisation or for any default or omission for which a mortgagee in possession might be liable.
- (c) If and whenever the Security Agent or any Receiver enters into possession of a Charged Asset, it will be entitled at any time to go out of possession.

12.4 Protection of Purchasers

No purchaser or other person dealing with the Security Agent, any Receiver or any delegate shall be bound to see or inquire whether the right of the Security Agent, any Receiver or any delegate to exercise any of its powers has arisen or become exercisable or be concerned with notice to the contrary, or be concerned to see whether the delegation by the Security Agent pursuant to the terms of this Debenture shall have lapsed for any reason or been revoked.

13. INFORMATION AND ACCESS

Each Chargor shall from time to time on request of the Security Agent furnish the Security Agent with such information as the Security Agent may reasonably require about the list of Charged Assets and its compliance with the terms of this Debenture, if and only to the extent:

(a) required by law to create, enforce, perfect or register the Security; or

(b) necessary or advisable to enforce the Security,

provided that in each case information can be provided without breaching confidentiality requirements or damaging business relationships, provided further that information provided to paragraph (b) above shall only be provided once annually, unless an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing.

14. ENFORCEMENT OF SECURITY

14.1 Enforcement

Any time after the occurrence of:

- (a) an Acceleration Event;
- (b) an Administration Event; or
- (c) a request from any Chargor to the Security Agent that it exercise any of its powers under this Debenture or any Legal Charge,

the Security created by or pursuant to this Debenture and each Legal Charge is immediately enforceable and the Security Agent may, without notice to any Chargor or prior authorisation from any court, in its absolute discretion:

- (i) enforce all or any part of that Security (at the times, in the manner and on the terms it thinks fit and take possession of and hold or dispose of all or any part of the Charged Assets (at the times, in the manner and on the terms it thinks fit (including whether for each or non-each consideration)); and
- (ii) whether or not it has appointed a Receiver, exercise all or any of the rights, powers, authorities and discretions conferred by the Law of Property Act 1925 (as varied or extended by this Debenture and each Legal Charge) on mortgagees and by this Debenture and each Legal Charge on any Receiver or otherwise conferred by law on mortgagees or Receivers.

14.2 Effect of moratorium

The Security Agent shall not be entitled to exercise its rights under Clause 14.1 (Enforcement) or Clause 5.2 (Crystallisation: by notice) where the right arises as a result of an Acceleration Event occurring solely due to any person obtaining, or taking steps to obtain, a moratorium pursuant to Schedule A1 of the Insolvency Act 1986.

15. EXTENSION OF POWERS AND RIGHT OF APPROPRIATION

15.1 Extension of powers

The power of sale or other disposal conferred on the Security Agent and on any Receiver by this Debenture and each Legal Charge shall operate as a variation and extension of the statutory power of sale under section 101 of the Law of Property Act 1925 and such power shall arise (and the Secured Obligations shall be deemed due and payable for that purpose) on the date of this Debenture or any Legal Charge.

15.2 Restrictions

The restrictions contained in sections 93 and 103 of the Law of Property Act 1925 shall not apply to this Debenture or any Legal Charge or to the exercise by the Security Agent of its right to consolidate all or any of the Security created by or pursuant to this Debenture or any Legal Charge with any other Security in existence at any time or to its power of sale, which powers may be exercised by the Security

Agent without notice to any Chargor on or at any time after this Debenture or any Legal Charge has become enforceable in accordance with Clause 14 (Enforcement of Security).

15.3 Power of leasing

- (a) The statutory powers of leasing may be exercised by the Security Agent at any time on or after this Debenture or any Legal Charge has become enforceable in accordance with Clause 14 (Enforcement of Security) and the Security Agent and any Receiver may make any lease or agreement for lease, accept surrenders of leases and grant options on such terms as it shall think fit, without the need to comply with sections 99 and 100 of the Law of Property Act 1925.
- (b) For the purposes of sections 99 and 100 of the Law of Property Act 1925, the expression "Mortgagor" will include any incumbrancer deriving title under any Chargor and neither section 99(18) nor section 100(12) of the Law of Property Act 1925 will apply.
- (c) No Chargor shall have, at any time during the Security Period, the power pursuant to section 99 of the Law of Property Act 1925, to make any lease in respect of any Real Property without the prior written consent of the Security Agent or as permitted pursuant to the terms of each of the Secured Debt Documents.

15.4 Right of appropriation

To the extent that the provisions of the Financial Collateral Arrangements (No. 2) Regulations 2003, as amended, (the "Regulations") apply to a Charged Asset, the Security Agent shall have the right to appropriate all or any part of that Charged Asset in or towards the payment or discharge of the Secured Obligations and may exercise such right to appropriate upon giving written notice to the relevant Charger. For this purpose, the parties agree that the value of that Charged Asset shall be:

- (a) in the case of cash, the amount standing to the credit of each of the Accounts, together with any accrued but unposted interest, at the time of appropriation; and
- (b) in the case of any Investments and/or Shares, the market value of such Investments and/or Shares determined by the Security Agent by reference to a public index or independent valuation or by such other process as the Security Agent may reasonably select.

In each case, the parties agree that the method of valuation provided for in this Debenture shall constitute a commercially reasonable method of valuation for the purposes of the Regulations.

16. APPOINTMENT OF RECEIVER OR ADMINISTRATOR

16.1 Appointment and removal

After the Security created by or pursuant to this Debenture or any Legal Charge has become enforceable in accordance with Clause 14.1 (*Enforcement*), the Security Agent may by deed or otherwise (acting through an authorised officer of the Security Agent):

- (a) without prior notice to any Chargon
 - appoint one or more persons to be a Receiver of the whole or any part of the Charged Assets; or
 - (ii) appoint two or more Receivers of separate parts of the Charged Assets; or
 - (iii) remove (so far as it is lawfully able) any Receiver so appointed; or
 - (iv) appoint another person(s) as an additional or replacement Receiver(s); or

- (v) appoint one or more persons to be an administrator of any Chargor pursuant to paragraph 14 of Schedule B1 of the Insolvency Act 1986; and
- (b) following notice to the relevant Chargor, appoint one or more persons to be an administrator of that Chargor pursuant to paragraph 12 of Schedule B1 of the Insolvency Act 1986.

16.2 Capacity of Receivers

Each person appointed to be a Receiver pursuant to Clause 16.1 (Appointment and removal) shall be:

- (a) entitled to act individually or together with any other person appointed or substituted as Receiver;
- (b) for all purposes deemed to be the agent of each Chargor which shall be solely responsible for his acts, defaults and liabilities and for the payment of his remuneration and no Receiver shall at any time act as agent for the Security Agent; and
- (c) entitled to remuneration for his services at a rate to be fixed by the Security Agent from time to time (without being limited to the maximum rate specified by the Law of Property Act 1925).

16.3 Statutory powers of appointment

The powers of appointment of a Receiver shall be in addition to all statutory and other powers of appointment of the Security Agent under the Law of Property Act 1925 (as extended by this Debenture and each Legal Charge) or otherwise and such powers shall remain exercisable from time to time by the Security Agent in respect of any part of the Charged Assets.

17. POWERS OF RECEIVERS

- 17.1 Every Receiver shall (subject to any restrictions in the instrument appointing him but notwithstanding any winding-up or dissolution of any Chargor) have and be entitled to exercise, in relation to the Charged Assets (and any assets of any Chargor which, when got in, would be Charged Assets) in respect of which he was appointed, and as varied and extended by the provisions of this Debenture and each Legal Charge (in the name of or on behalf of any Chargor or in his own name and, in each case, at the cost of that Chargor):
 - (a) all the powers conferred by the Law of Property Act 1925 on mortgagors and on mortgagees in possession and on receivers appointed under that Act;
 - (b) all the powers of an administrative receiver set out in Schedule 1 to the Insolvency Act 1986 (whether or not the Receiver is an administrative receiver);
 - (c) all the powers and rights of an absolute owner and power to do or omit to do anything which any Chargor itself could do or omit to do; and
 - (d) the power to do all things (including bringing or defending proceedings in the name or on behalf of any Chargor) which seem to the Receiver to be incidental or conducive to:
 - (i) any of the functions, powers, authorities or discretions conferred on or vested in him;
 - (ii) the exercise of the Collateral Rights (including realisation of all or any part of the assets in respect of which that Receiver was appointed); or
 - (iii) bringing to his hands any assets of any Chargor forming part of, or which when got in would be, Charged Assets.

In addition, a Receiver shall be entitled, to the extent permitted by applicable laws, (either in his own name or in the name of the Chargor or any trustee or nominee for the Chargor) or otherwise and in such manner and upon such terms and conditions as the Receiver thinks fit and either alone or jointly with any other person:

- (e) Take possession: to enter upon, take possession of, get in and collect the Charged Assets;
- (f) Contracts: to enter into any contract or arrangement and to perform, repudiate, reseind or vary any contract or arrangement to which the Chargor is a party to the extent necessary to dispose of the Charged Assets and to perform its obligations;
- (g) Deal with Charged Assets: to sell, transfer, assign, exchange, hire out, lend or otherwise dispose of, convert into money or realise the Charged Assets either by public offer or auction, tender or private contract to any person on any terms and for a consideration of any nature he thinks fit;
- (h) Covenants and guarantees: to lend money or advance credit to any customer of the Chargor, enter into bonds, covenants, commitments, guarantees, indemnities or like matters and to make all requisite payments to effect, maintain or satisfy the same;
- (i) Rights of ownership: to the extent permitted by law to manage and use the Charged Assets and to exercise and do (or permit the Chargor or any nominee of it to exercise and do) all such rights and things as the Receiver would be capable of exercising or doing if he were the absolute beneficial owner of the Charged Assets;
- (j) Proceedings and claims: to bring, prosecute, enforce, defend and abandon actions, suits and proceedings in relation to the Charged Assets or the business of the Chargor;
- (k) Compromise of claims: to settle, adjust, refer to arbitration, compromise and arrange any claims, accounts, disputes, questions and demands with or by any person who is or claims to be a creditor of the Chargor or relating in any way to the Charged Assets;
- (l) Redemption of Security: to redeem any Security (whether or not having priority to the Charges) over the Charged Assets and to settle the accounts of encumbrancers:
- (m) Receipts: to give a valid receipt for any moneys and execute any document which is necessary
 or desirable for realising any Charged Assets;
- (n) Insolvency Act 1986: to exercise all powers set out in Schedule 1 or Schedule B1 or (in the case of a Scottish Receiver) Schedule 2 to the Insolvency Act 1986 (whether or not the Receiver is an administrative receiver) and any powers added to Schedule 1, Schedule B1 or Schedule 2, as the case may be, after the date of this Deed; and
- (o) Other powers: to do all such other acts and things the Receiver may consider necessary or expedient for preserving, improving or realising the Charged Assets or the getting in and collection of the Charged Assets (or any assets which when got in would constitute Charged Assets) or which are incidental to the exercise of any of the rights, powers and discretions conferred on the Receiver under or by virtue of this Deed or by law.

Each of the powers specified in each of the above paragraphs shall (except as otherwise provided) be distinct and shall not be in any way limited by reference to any other paragraph or the order in which they appear.

18. APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS

All monies received or recovered and any non-cash recoveries made or received by the Security Agent or any Receiver pursuant to this Debenture or any Legal Charge or the powers conferred by it shall (subject to the provisions of the Intercreditor Agreement the claims of any person having prior rights thereto and by way of variation of the provisions of the Law of Property Act 1925) be applied in accordance with clause 19 (Application of Proceeds) of the Intercreditor Agreement.

19. PROTECTION OF PURCHASERS

19.1 Consideration

The receipt of the Security Agent or any Receiver shall be conclusive discharge to a purchaser and, in making any sale or disposal of any of the Charged Assets or making any acquisition, the Security Agent or any Receiver may do so for such consideration (whether cash or non-cash), in such manner and on such terms as it thinks fit.

19.2 Protection of purchasers

No purchaser or other person dealing with the Security Agent or any Receiver shall be bound to inquire whether the right of the Security Agent or such Receiver to exercise any of its powers has arisen or become exercisable or be concerned with any propriety or regularity on the part of the Security Agent or such Receiver in such dealings.

20. POWER OF ATTORNEY

20.1 Appointment and powers

Each Chargor by way of security irrevocably appoints the Security Agent and any Receiver severally to be its attorney and in its name, on its behalf and as its act and deed to:

- (a) execute, deliver and perfect a Legal Charge over any Real Property not already the subject of a registrable Legal Charge as required under Clause 7.1(a) (Further Assurance) of this Debenture, and
- (b) execute, deliver and perfect all other documents and do all things which the attorney may consider to be required or desirable for:
 - (i) carrying out any obligation imposed on any Chargor by this Debenture, any Legal Charge or any other agreement binding on such Chargor to which the Security Agent is party (including the execution and delivery of any deeds, charges, assignments or other security and any transfers of the Charged Assets and perfecting and/or releasing the Security created or intended to be created in respect of the Charged Assets); and
 - (ii) enabling the Security Agent and any Receiver to exercise (subject to Clause 8.5 (Waiver of voting rights by Security Agent)), or delegate the exercise of, any of the rights, powers and authorities conferred on them by or pursuant to this Debenture, each Legal Charge or by law (including, after an Acceleration Event, the exercise of any right of a legal or beneficial owner of the Charged Assets),

if the Chargor has failed to perform an obligation under a Security Document and such failure has not been remedied within 20 Business Days of the Security Agent requiring it to be so remedied or at any time following the occurrence of an Acceleration Event.

20.2 Ratification

Each Chargor shall ratify and confirm all things done and all documents executed by any attorney in the exercise or purported exercise of all or any of his powers.

21. EFFECTIVENESS OF SECURITY

21.1 Continuing security

- (a) Subject to the provisions of Clause 25, the Security created by or pursuant to this Debenture and each Legal Charge shall remain in full force and effect as a continuing security for the Secured Obligations unless and until discharged by the Security Agent in writing.
- (b) No part of the Security from time to time intended to be constituted by this Debenture or any Legal Charge will be considered satisfied or discharged by an intermediate payment, discharge or satisfaction of the whole or any part of the Secured Obligations.

21.2 Cumulative rights

The Security created by or pursuant to this Debenture and each Legal Charge, and the Collateral Rights, shall be cumulative, in addition to and independent of every other Security which the Security Agent or any Secured Party may at any time hold for the Secured Obligations or any other obligations or any rights, powers and remedies provided by law and shall operate as an independent security notwithstanding any receipt, release or discharge endorsed on or given in respect of or under any such other Security. No prior Security held by the Security Agent (whether in its capacity as trustee or otherwise) or any of the other Secured Parties over the whole or any part of the Charged Assets shall merge into the Security constituted by this Debenture and each Legal Charge.

21.3 No prejudice

The Security created by or pursuant to this Debenture and each Legal Charge, and the Collateral Rights, shall not be prejudiced by any unenforceability or invalidity of any other agreement or document or by any time or indulgence granted to any Chargor or any other person, or the Security Agent (whether in its capacity as trustee or otherwise) or any of the other Secured Parties or by any variation of the terms of the trust upon which the Security Agent holds the Security or by any other thing which might otherwise prejudice that Security or any Collateral Right.

21.4 Remedies and waivers

No failure on the part of the Security Agent to exercise, nor any delay on its part in exercising, any Collateral Right, shall operate as a waiver of that Collateral Right or constitute an election to affirm this Debenture or any Legal Charge. No election to affirm this Debenture or any Legal Charge on the part of the Security Agent shall be effective unless it is in writing. No single or partial exercise of any Collateral Right shall preclude any further or other exercise of that or any other Collateral Right.

21.5 No liability

None of the Security Agent, its nominee(s) or any Receiver shall be liable:

- (a) to account as a mortgagee or mortgagee in possession; or
- (b) for any loss arising by reason of taking any action permitted by this Debenture or any Legal Charge or any neglect or default in connection with the Charged Assets or taking possession of or realising all or any part of the Charged Assets,

except in the case of gross negligence or wilful default upon its part.

21.6 Partial invalidity

If, at any time, any provision of this Debenture or any Legal Charge is or becomes illegal, invalid or unenforceable in any respect under the law of any jurisdiction, neither the legality, validity or enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Debenture and each Legal Charge nor of such provision under the laws of any other jurisdiction shall in any way be affected or impaired thereby and, if any part of the Security intended to be created by or pursuant to this Debenture or any Legal Charge is invalid, unenforceable or ineffective for any reason, that shall not affect or impair any other part of the Security.

21.7 Waiver of defences

The obligations assumed, and the Security created, by each Chargor under this Debenture and each Legal Charge, and the Collateral Rights, will not be affected by any act, omission, matter or thing which, but for this Clause 21.7, would reduce, release or prejudice any of its obligations under, or the Security created by, this Debenture and each Legal Charge (without limitation and whether or not known to that Chargor or any Secured Party) including:

- (a) any time, waiver or consent granted to, or composition with, any Obligor or other person;
- (b) the release of any other Obligor or any other person under the terms of any composition or arrangement with any creditor of any member of the Group:
- (c) the taking, variation, compromise, exchange, renewal or release of, or refusal or neglect to perfect, take up or enforce, any rights against, or Security over assets of, any Obligor or other person or any non-presentation or non-observance of any formality or other requirement in respect of any instrument or any failure to realise the full value of any Security;
- any incapacity or lack of power, authority or legal personality of or dissolution or change in the members or status of, any Obligor or any other person;
- (e) any amendment, novation, supplement, extension (whether of maturity or otherwise) or restatement (in each case, however fundamental and of whatever nature, and whether or not more onerous) or replacement of a Secured Debt Document or any other document or Security or of the Secured Obligations;
- (f) any unenforceability, illegality or invalidity of any obligation of any person under any Secured Debt Document or any other document or Security or of the Secured Obligations; and
- (g) any insolvency or similar proceedings.

21.8 Chargor intent

Without prejudice to the generality of Clause 21.7 (Waiver of Defences), each Chargor expressly confirms that it intends that the Security created under this Debenture and each Legal Charge, and the Collateral Rights, shall extend from time to time to any (however fundamental and of whatsoever nature, and whether or not more onerous) variation, increase, extension or addition of or to any of the Secured Debt Documents and/or any facility or amount made available under any of the Secured Debt Documents for the purposes of or in connection with any of the following: acquisitions of any nature; increasing working capital; enabling investor distributions to be made; carrying out restructurings; refinancing existing facilities; refinancing any other indebtedness; making facilities available to new borrowers; any other variation or extension of the purposes for which any such facility or amount might be made available from time to time; and any fees, costs and/or expenses associated with any of the foregoing.

21.9 Immediate recourse

Each Chargor waives any right it may have of first requiring any Secured Party (or any trustee or agent on its behalf) to proceed against or enforce any other rights or Security or claim payment from any other person before claiming from that Chargor under this Debenture or any Legal Charge. This waiver applies irrespective of any law or any provision of this Debenture or any Legal Charge to the contrary.

21.10 Deferral of rights

Until the end of the Security Period, no Chargor will exercise any rights which it may have by reason of performance by it of its obligations under this Debenture or any Legal Charge:

- (a) to be indemnified by an Obligor,
- (b) to claim any contribution from any guaranter of any Obligor's obligations under this Debenture or any Legal Charge:
- (c) to take the benefit (in whole or in part and whether by way of subrogation or otherwise) of any rights of any Secured Party under this Debenture or any Legal Charge or of any other guarantee or Security taken pursuant to, or in connection with, this Debenture or any Legal Charge by any Secured Party;
- (d) to bring legal or other proceedings for an order requiring any Obligor to make any payment, or perform any obligation, in respect of which any Obligor has given a guarantee, undertaking or indemnity under any Secured Debt Document;
- (e) to exercise any right of set-off against any Obligor; and/or
- (f) to claim or prove as a creditor of any Obligor in competition with any Secured Party.

If any Chargor receives any benefit, payment or distribution in relation to such rights it shall hold that benefit, payment or distribution on trust for the Secured Parties to the extent necessary to enable all amounts which may be or become payable to any Secured Party by the Obligors under or in connection with this Debenture or any Legal Charge to be repaid in full and shall promptly pay or transfer the same to the Security Agent or as the Security Agent may direct for application in accordance with Clause 18 (Application of Proceeds).

22. PRIOR SECURITY INTERESTS

- (a) In the event of any action, proceeding or step being taken to exercise any powers or remedies conferred by any prior ranking Security against any of the Charged Assets or in case of exercise by the Security Agent or any Receiver of any power of sale under this Debenture or any Legal Charge, the Security Agent may redeem such prior Security or procure the transfer thereof to itself.
- (b) The Security Agent may settle and agree the accounts of the prior Security and any accounts so settled and agreed will be conclusive and binding on each Chargor.
- (c) All principal monies, interest, costs, charges and expenses of and incidental to any redemption or transfer will be paid by each Chargor to the Security Agent on demand together with accrued interest thereon calculated in accordance with Clause 2.2 (Default interest).

23. SUBSEQUENT SECURITY INTERESTS

If the Security Agent (acting in its capacity as trustee or otherwise) or any of the other Secured Parties at any time receives or is deemed to have received notice of any subsequent Security, assignment or transfer affecting all or any part of the Charged Assets which is prohibited by the terms of any Secured Debt Document, all payments thereafter by or on behalf of the relevant Chargor to the Security Agent (whether in its capacity as trustee or otherwise) or any of the other Secured Parties will (in the absence of any express contrary appropriation by that Chargor) be treated as having been credited to a new account of that Chargor and not as having been applied in reduction of the Secured Obligations at the time that notice was received.

24. SUSPENSE ACCOUNTS

Upon the occurrence of an Acceleration Event, all monies received, recovered or realised by the Security Agent under this Debenture and each Legal Charge (including the proceeds of any conversion of currency) may in the discretion of the Security Agent be credited to any interest bearing suspense or impersonal account(s) maintained with any bank, building society, financial institution or other person which the Security Agent considers appropriate (including itself) for so long as it may think fit (the interest being credited to the relevant account) pending their application from time to time at the Security Agent's discretion, in or towards the discharge of any of the Secured Obligations and save as provided herein no party will be entitled to withdraw any amount at any time standing to the credit of any suspense or impersonal account referred to above.

25. RELEASE OF SECURITY

25.1 Release of Security

Upon:

- (a) the expiry of the Security Period; or
- (b) any Chargor ceasing to be both a Borrower and a Guarantor,

the Security Agent shall, at the request and cost of the relevant Chargor, release, discharge and cancel the Security constituted by this Debenture and each Legal Charge of such Chargor and procure the reassignment to the relevant Chargor (in the case of (b) above) or (in the case of (a) above) the Chargors of the property and assets assigned to the Security Agent pursuant to this Debenture and each Legal Charge, in each case subject to Clause 25.3(Clauback) and without recourse to, or any representation or warranty by, the Security Agent or any of its nominees.

25.2 Permitted Releases

In connection with:

- (a) any circumstances in which release of Security is contemplated under the terms of the Intercreditor Agreement;
- (b) any sale or other disposition of any property not otherwise prohibited by the Secured Debt Documents that is subject to the Transaction Security Documents;
- (c) any sale or other disposition of any property that is subject to a Transaction Security

 Document where each of the Creditor Representatives and the Security Agent has consented
 to the disposal pursuant to the Secured Debt Documents; or
- (d) any sale or any other disposition of any property pursuant to a merger, consolidation, reorganisation, winding-up, securitisation or sale and leaseback permitted by the Secured Debt Documents to the extent necessary to ensure that such merger, consolidation, reorganisation, winding-up, securitisation or sale and leaseback can take place,

the Security Agent shall, at the request and cost of the relevant Chargor, release, discharge and cancel the Security of such Chargor and procure the reassignment to the relevant Chargor of the property and assets assigned to the Security Agent pursuant to the relevant Transaction Security Document, provided that, to the extent that the disposal of such property is permitted by each of the Secured Debt Documents, the property shall be declared to be automatically released from the Security with effect from the day of such disposal and the Security Agent and the Agent shall each do all such acts which are reasonably requested by the Chargor in order to release such property.

25.3 Clawback

If the Security Agent considers that any amount paid or credited to any Secured Party is capable of being avoided or reduced by virtue of any bankruptcy, insolvency, liquidation or similar laws, the liability of each Chargor under this Debenture or any Legal Charge and the Security constituted by that or those documents will continue and such amount will not be considered to have been irrevocably discharged.

26. SET-OFF

Each Chargor authorises the Security Agent (but the Security Agent shall not be obliged to exercise such right), after an Acceleration Event, to set off against the Secured Obligations any amount or other obligation (contingent or otherwise) owing by the Security Agent to any Chargor and apply any credit balance to which that Chargor is entitled on any account with the Security Agent in accordance with Clause 18 (Application of Proceeds) (notwithstanding any specified maturity of any deposit standing to the credit of any such account).

27. CHANGES TO PARTIES

27.1 No assignments or transfers by Chargor

No Chargor may assign any of its rights or transfer any of its rights or obligations under this Debenture or any Legal Charge.

27.2 Assignments and transfers by the Security Agent

The Security Agent, may, subject to the Intercreditor Agreement, assign and transfer all or any of its rights and obligations under this Debenture and any Legal Charge. The Security Agent shall be entitled to disclose such information concerning any Chargor and this Debenture or any Legal Charge as the Security Agent considers appropriate to any actual or proposed direct or indirect successor or to any person to whom information may be required to be disclosed by any applicable law.

27.3 Accession:

- (a) Each Chargor shall procure that any new Subsidiary of it which is required to do so by the terms of the Facilities Agreement executes a Security Accession Deed and thereby charges its assets and undertaking contemplated by this Deed to the Security Agent.
- (b) Each Chargor consents to new Subsidiaries becoming Chargors as contemplated by Clause 27.3(a) (Accession) and irrevocably appoints the Parent as its agent for the purpose of executing accession deeds on its behalf.

28. NOTICES

28.1 Communications in Writing

Each communication to be made under or in connection with this Debenture or any Legal Charge shall be made in writing and, unless otherwise stated, shall be made by fax or letter.

28.2 Addresses

The address and fax number (and the department or officer, if any, for whose attention the communication is to be made) of each Party for any communication or document to be made or delivered under or in connection with this Debenture or any Legal Charge is:

(a) in the case of a Chargor,

Address: 26 Red Lion Square, London, WC1R 4HQ

Attention: Matthew O'Sullivan

(b) in the case of the Security Agent,

Address: Third Floor

1 King's Arms Yard

London EC2R 7AF

Fax:

Attention: The Directors

(c) in the case of a Chargor which accedes to this Debenture in accordance with Clause 27 (Changes to Parties), that set out in the Security Accession Deed by which it becomes a party hereto.

or any substitute address, fax number, or department or officer as the Party may notify to the Agent pursuant to clause 35 (Notices) of the Facilities Agreement by not less than five Business Days' notice.

28.3 Delivery

- (a) Any communication or document made or delivered by one person to another under or in connection with this Debenture or any Legal Charge will only be effective:
 - (i) if by way of fax, when received in legible form; or
 - (ii) if by way of letter, when it has been left at the relevant address or five Business Days after being deposited in the post, postage prepaid in an envelope addressed to it at that address,

and, if a particular department or officer is specified as part of its address details provided under Clause 28.2 (Addresses), if addressed to that department or officer.

(b) Any communication or document to be made or delivered to the Security Agent will be effective only when actually received by the Security Agent and then only if it is expressly marked for the attention of the department or officer identified above (or any substitute department or officer as the Security Agent shall specify for this purpose).

28.4 English language

- (a) Any notice given under or in connection with this Debenture and any Legal Charge must be in English.
- (b) All other documents provided under or in connection with this Debenture and any Legal Charge must be:
 - (i) in English; or
 - (ii) if not in English, and if so required by the Security Agent, accompanied by a certified English translation and, in this case, the English translation will prevail unless the document is a constitutional, statutory or other official document.

29. EXPENSES, STAMP TAXES AND INDEMNITY

Stamp Taxes

Each Chargor shall pay all stamp, registration, notarial and other taxes and fees to which this Debenture and any Legal Charge, the Security contemplated in this Debenture and any Legal Charge or any judgment given in connection with it is or at any time may be subject and shall, from time to time, indemnify the Security Agent on demand against any liabilities, costs, claims and expenses resulting from any failure to pay or delay in paying any such tax.

30. THE SECURITY AGENT

30.1 Discretion

Any liberty or power which may be exercised or any determination which may be made under this Debenture or under any Legal Charge by the Security Agent or any Receiver may, subject to the terms and conditions of the Secured Debt Documents, be exercised or made in its absolute and unfettered discretion without any obligation to give reasons.

30.2 Delegation

Each of the Security Agent and any Receiver shall have full power to delegate (either generally or specifically) the powers, authorities and discretions conferred on it by this Debenture (including the power of attorney) or any Legal Charge on such terms and conditions as it shall see fit which delegation shall not preclude the subsequent exercise, any subsequent delegation or any revocation of such power, authority or discretion by the Security Agent or the Receiver itself.

30.3 Protections

Each Chargor hereby acknowledges and agrees that in acting under this Debenture or any Legal Charge, the Security Agent is entitled to the benefit of all protections and other provisions expressed to be in its favour as Security Agent as set out in the Intercreditor Agreement and the Senior Secured Notes Indenture.

References in this Debenture or any Legal Charge to the cooperation of, or to an approval, opinion, consent, discretion or requirement of the Security Agent means, the cooperation of, or an approval, opinion, consent, discretion or requirement of the Security Agent as Security Agent acting on the instructions of the Instruction Group or other person pursuant to the Intercreditor Agreement.

31. GOVERNING LAW

This Debenture and each Legal Charge and all non-contractual obligations arising out of or inconnection with it are governed by English law.

32. JURISDICTION

32.1 English Courts

The courts of England have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute (a "Dispute") arising out of, or in connection with this Debenture or any Legal Charge (including a dispute relating to the existence, validity or termination of this Debenture or any Legal Charge or the consequences of its nullity or any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with this Debenture or any Legal Charge).

32.2 Convenient Forum

The parties agree that the courts of England are the most appropriate and convenient courts to settle Disputes between them and, accordingly, that they will not argue to the contrary.

THIS DEBENTURE has been executed as, and is intended to take effect as, a deed by each Chargor and has been signed by the Security Agent on the date written on the first page of this Debenture.

[The rest of this page is intentionally left blank]

SCHEDULE 1 CHARGORS

Chargor	Registered Number
TSL Education Limited	02017289
TSL Education Group Limited	06141077
TSL Education SPV 2 Limited	06141051
TSL Education SPV 3 Limited	06140295
TSL Education SPV 4 Limited	06209968
TSL Education Holdings Limited	05560402
TSL Education Finance Limited	05560466
TSL Education Acquisition Limited	05561941
Education Data Surveys Ltd	03593600
Nursery World Limited	01723502
The Times Educational Supplement Limited	00935239
TSL Education US Holdings Limited	08659768
Brightspark Education Limited	07498942
Educational Exhibitions Limited	02655217
Electronic Blackboard Limited	03557115
The Times Higher Education Supplement Limited	01876981
TES Supply Limited	08933928
TES BidCo Limited	08918230
Vision for Education Limited	06433086
TES Education Resources Limited	08835256
Englishteaching.co.uk Ltd	04327020
TES Finance plc	09098342

SCHEDULE 2 FORM OF LEGAL CHARGE

Dated [*]

[o]
as the Chargor

in favour of

[*] as the Security Agent

LEGAL CHARGE RELATING TO [SPECIFY PROPERTIES]

THIS LEGAL CHARGE is made by way of deed on [*] by:

- (1) [Enter Chargor Name] (registered in England and Wales with company registration number [•]) (the "Chargor") in favour of
- (2) WILMINGTON TRUST (LONDON) LIMITED as trustee for each of the Secured Parties (the "Security Agent").

THIS DEED WITNESSES as follows:

1	1		13.	^* *	ستميد ڏا	والمتاسية	¥ 6	عد عاد الما	6000	efion
ų				11.11	(1)	C) #14	1 .		F . 1	

- 1.1 "Debenture" means the debenture dated ______2014 between the entities listed in schedule 1 therein and Wilmington Trust (London) as Security Agent.
- 1.2 "Intercreditor Agreement" means the intercreditor agreement dated 2014 between, amongst others, Goldman Sachs Bank USA and Jefferies Finance LLC as Arrangers, certain entities as listed therein as Debtors, TSL Education Group Limited as Parent, TES Finance plc as Senior Secured Notes Issuer, and Wilmington Trust (London) Limited as Original RCF Agent and Security Agent.
- Unless defined in this Legal Charge, or the context otherwise requires, a term defined in the Debenture or Intercreditor Agreement has the same meaning in this Legal Charge, or any notice given under or in connection with this Legal Charge.
- Clauses 6.1 (Negative pledge and restriction on dealings), 7.1 (Further assurance), 14 (Enforcement of Security), 15 (Extension of Powers and Right of Appropriation), 16 (Appointment of Receiver or Administrator), 17 (Powers of Receivers), 20 (Power of Attorney), 25 (Release of Security), 28 (Notices), 29 (Expenses, stamp taxes and indemnity), 30 (The Security Agent) and 32 (Jurisdiction) of the Debenture are deemed to form part of this Legal Charge as if expressly incorporated into this Legal Charge and (b) the Charged Assets were references to the assets of the Chargor from time to time charged in favour of, or assigned (whether at law, or in equity) to the Security Agent by or pursuant to this Legal Charge.
 - 1.5 It is agreed that this Legal Charge is supplemental to the Debenture and to the extent the provisions of the Debenture conflict with those of this Legal Charge, the provisions of this Legal Charge shall prevail. It is also agreed that the provisions of the Intercreditor Agreement shall prevail to the extent there is a conflict or inconsistency with the provisions of this Legal Charge.

2. Legal Charge

[The Chargor] / [Each Chargor] charges in favour of the Security Agent (as trustee for the Secured Parties), for the payment and discharge of the Secured Obligations, by way of first legal mortgage, the freehold and leasehold property specified in the Schedule (the "Mortgaged Property").

3. Implied Covenants for Title

- (a) The covenants set out in Sections 3(1), 3(2) and 6(2) of the Law of Property (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1994 will not extend to Clause 1 (Legal Charge).
- (b) It shall be implied in respect of Clause I (Legal Charge) that [the Chargor] / [each Chargor] is disposing of the Mortgaged Property free from all charges and incumbrances (whether monetary or not) and from all other rights exercisable by third parties (including liabilities imposed and rights conferred by or under any enactment).

4. Application to the Land Registry

[The Chargor] / [Each Chargor] consents to an application being made to the Land Registry to enter the following restriction in the proprietorship register of any registered land forming part of the Mortgaged Property:

"No disposition of the registered estate by the proprietor of the registered estate, or by the proprietor of any registered charge, not being a charge registered before the entry of this restriction, is to be registered without a written consent signed by the proprietor for the time being of the charge dated [•] in favour of [•] referred to in the charges register or their conveyancer."

5. Further Advances

Subject to the terms of the Facility, each Lender is under an obligation to make further advances to [the Chargor]/[each Chargor] and that obligation will be deemed to be incorporated in this Legal Charge as if set out in this Legal Charge. [The Chargor] / [Each Chargor] consents to an application being made to the Land Registry to enter the obligation to make further advances on the Charges Register relating to the Mortgaged Property.

6. Governing Law

This Legal Charge and all non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by English law.

THIS LEGAL CHARGE has been executed as, and is intended to take effect as, a deed by [the Chargor] / [each Chargor] and has been signed by the Security Agent on the date written on the first page of this Legal Charge.

SCHEDULE 1 TO THE LEGAL CHARGE MORTGAGED PROPERTY

Property Description

Title Number

EXECUTION PAGE TO LEGAL CHARGE

ine Chargors		
EXECUTED AS A D [name of Chargor]	EED BY	
Name:		:
Title: Director	· ·	
in the presence of:		
Signature of witness:	के स्वतंत्रत करण गंद को एक कारण का	
Name:	The survey of the second secon	
Occupation:	Burry processing some side of	
Address:	Same and the same of the same same	
	. Alaba y nama alabanan masa dan ka ka ka kaban	

The Security Agent EXECUTED AS A DEED by WILMINGTON TRUST (LONDON) LIMITED acting by in the presence of: Witness: Name: Address:

SCHEDULE 3 FORM OF NOTICE OF SECURITY INTEREST TO ACCOUNT BANK

[name of Account Bank]

	[address]		
Dated:	The state of the s		
Dear Sirs	·		
[•] (the "Ch	ıargor")		
Name of ac	iii		Account number and sort code
	waanser manaagee aanaan qoo too qoo qoo qoo qoo qoo qoo qoo aa qoo qoo		
treindreined data and an anticata an anticata an an anticata an	A. h.	en sam, en	
Debenture (Agent (the		2014 made betw	een, amongst others, the Chargor and [•] as Security
favour of the "Specified a which may	he Security Agent all Accounts") and any o at any time be stand	its rights, title and int ther bank account main ing to the credit of su	Chargor has charged (by way of first fixed charge) in erest in and to, the accounts with you listed above (the trained with you (the "Accounts"), including all moneys the accounts. A copy of the Deed is enclosed. Unless we the meaning given to them in the Deed.
The Chargo	r hereby irrevocably a	and unconditionally ins	tructs and authorises you:
(a) to disclo you to discl		ent any information rel	ating to the Accounts which the Security Agent requests
withdrawal	of any moneys stand	ling to the credit of t	n Acceleration Event has occurred, not to permit any he Accounts, without the prior written consent of the of the Security Agent; and
		ny written notices or it ich you receive from tl	nstructions relating to the Deed and/or the Accounts and ne Security Agent.
full force an	nd effect until the Ch	argor and the Security	isations which are contained in this letter shall remain in Agent together give you notice in writing revoking or contained in this letter without further authority from the
	tions and authorisation by or on behalf of an		sede any instructions and authorisations to the contrary

Yours faithfully

To:

This letter and all non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by and will be

Please acknowledge your acceptance of the instructions and authorisations contained in this notice by signing

the attached Form of Acknowledgement and returning it to the Security Agent at [•] copied to us.

construed in accordance with the laws of England and Wales.

[nem	w of Chargor
Ву	
	Authorised Signatory

Form of Acknowledgement of Notice of Security by Account Bank

Debenture dated (the "Beed") We hereby acknowledge receipt of the notice (a copy of which is attached hereto (the "Notice")) dated [insert dule] and addressed to us by you regarding the Accounts. Terms defined in the Notice shall have the same meanings when used in this letter. We hereby confirm that we: (a) accept the instructions and authorisations contained in the Notice and agree to comply with the terms thereof; (b) do not have, and will not make or exercise, any claims or demands, any rights of counterclaim, Security, rights of combination, consolidation or set-off or rights against the Chargor in respect of the Accounts and/or the debts represented by them other than in respect of fees for operating the accounts; (c) have not received notice of any interest of any third party in any Account and/or the debts represented by them and to our knowledge there are no restrictions on the creation of Security over the Accounts pursuant to the Dect, and (d) have not designated [any of] the [Specified] Account[s] a dormant account within the meaning of the Dormant Bank and Building Society Accounts Act 2003 and we agree that we will not so designate the [Specified] Account to the reclaim fund without the Security Agent's prior written consent. We agree that, in the event that we become aware at any time that any person other than yourselves has or will have any right or interest in the Accounts and/or the debts represented by them, we will promptly notify you. The only Account[s] maintained with us [ts] [are] the Specified Account[s] referred to in the Notice [and [et]]. This letter and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by English law. Yours faithfully	To: Wilmin	gton Trust (London) Limited (the "Security Agent")
(the "Deed") We hereby acknowledge receipt of the notice (a copy of which is attached hereto (the "Notice")) dated [insert dule] and addressed to us by you regarding the Accounts. Terms defined in the Notice shall have the same meanings when used in this letter. We hereby confirm that we: (a) accept the instructions and authorisations contained in the Notice and agree to comply with the terms thereof; (b) do not have, and will not make or exercise, any claims or demands, any rights of counterclaim, Security, rights of combination, consolidation or set-off or rights against the Charger in respect of the Accounts and/or the debts represented by them other than in respect of fees for operating the accounts; (c) have not received notice of any interest of any third party in any Account and/or the debts represented by them and to our knowledge there are no restrictions on the creation of Security over the Accounts pursuant to the Deed; and (d) have not designated [any of] the [Specified] Account[s] a domant account within the meaning of the Dormant Bank and Building Society Accounts Act 2008 and we agree that we will not so designate the [Specified] Account[s] or take any steps to transfer the balance standing to the credit of the [Specified] Account to the reclaim fund without the Security Agent's prior written consent. We agree that, in the event that we become aware at any time that any person other than yourselves has or will have any right or interest in the Accounts and/or the debts represented by them, we will promptly notify you. The only Account[s] maintained with us [si] [are] the Specified Account[s] referred to in the Notice [and [ef]]. This letter and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by English law. Yours faithfully	Date:	
 (a) accept the instructions and authorisations contained in the Notice shall have the same meanings when used in this letter. We hereby confirm that we: (a) accept the instructions and authorisations contained in the Notice and agree to comply with the terms thereof; (b) do not have, and will not make or exercise, any claims or demands, any rights of counterclaim, Security, rights of combination, consolidation or set-off or rights against the Chargor in respect of the Accounts and/or the debts represented by them other than in respect of fees for operating the accounts; (c) have not received notice of any interest of any third party in any Account and/or the debts represented by them and to our knowledge there are no restrictions on the creation of Security over the Accounts pursuant to the Deed; and (d) have not designated [any of] the [Specified] Account[s] a dormant account within the meaning of the Dormant Bank and Building Society Accounts Act 2008 and we agree that we will not so designate the [Specified] Account[s] or take any steps to transfer the balance standing to the credit of the [Specified] Account to the reclaim fund without the Security Agent's prior written consent. We agree that, in the event that we become aware at any time that any person other than yourselves has or will have any right or interest in the Accounts and/or the debts represented by them, we will promptly notify you. The only Account[s] maintained with us [is] [are] the Specified Account[s] referred to in the Notice [and [ef]]. This letter and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by English law. Yours faithfully 	The second secon	d2014 between, amongst others, the Chargor and the Security Agent
terms thereof; (b) do not have, and will not make or exercise, any claims or demands, any rights of counterclaim, Security, rights of combination, consolidation or set-off or rights against the Chargor in respect of the Accounts and/or the debts represented by them other than in respect of fees for operating the accounts; (c) have not received notice of any interest of any third party in any Account and/or the debts represented by them and to our knowledge there are no restrictions on the creation of Security over the Accounts pursuant to the Deed; and (d) have not designated [any of] the [Specified] Account[s] a dormant account within the meaning of the Dormant Bank and Building Society Accounts Act 2008 and we agree that we will not so designate the [Specified] Account[s] or take any steps to transfer the balance standing to the credit of the [Specified] Account to the reclaim fund without the Security Agent's prior written consent. We agree that, in the event that we become aware at any time that any person other than yourselves has or will have any right or interest in the Accounts and/or the debts represented by them, we will promptly notify you. The only Account[s] maintained with us [is] [are] the Specified Account[s] referred to in the Notice [and [e]]. This letter and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by English law. Yours faithfully	dute] and address	sed to us by you regarding the Accounts. Terms defined in the Notice shall have the same
Security, rights of combination, consolidation or set-off or rights against the Chargor in respect of the Accounts and/or the debts represented by them other than in respect of fees for operating the accounts; (c) have not received notice of any interest of any third party in any Account and/or the debts represented by them and to our knowledge there are no restrictions on the creation of Security over the Accounts pursuant to the Deed; and (d) have not designated [any of] the [Specified] Account[s] a dormant account within the meaning of the Dormant Bank and Building Society Accounts Act 2008 and we agree that we will not so designate the [Specified] Account[s] or take any steps to transfer the balance standing to the credit of the [Specified] Account to the reclaim fund without the Security Agent's prior written consent. We agree that, in the event that we become aware at any time that any person other than yourselves has or will have any right or interest in the Accounts and/or the debts represented by them, we will promptly notify you. The only Account[s] maintained with us [is] [are] the Specified Account[s] referred to in the Notice [and [of]]. This letter and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by English law. Yours faithfully	(a)	
represented by them and to our knowledge there are no restrictions on the creation of Security over the Accounts pursuant to the Deed; and (d) have not designated [any of] the [Specified] Account[s] a dormant account within the meaning of the Dormant Bank and Building Society Accounts Act 2008 and we agree that we will not so designate the [Specified] Account[s] or take any steps to transfer the balance standing to the credit of the [Specified] Account to the reclaim fund without the Security Agent's prior written consent. We agree that, in the event that we become aware at any time that any person other than yourselves has or will have any right or interest in the Accounts and/or the debts represented by them, we will promptly notify you. The only Account[s] maintained with us [is] [are] the Specified Account[s] referred to in the Notice [and [of]]. This letter and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by English law. Yours faithfully	(b)	Security, rights of combination, consolidation or set-off or rights against the Chargor in respect of the Accounts and/or the debts represented by them other than in respect of fees for
of the Dormant Bank and Building Society Accounts Act 2008 and we agree that we will not so designate the [Specified] Account[s] or take any steps to transfer the balance standing to the credit of the [Specified] Account to the reclaim fund without the Security Agent's prior written consent. We agree that, in the event that we become aware at any time that any person other than yourselves has or will have any right or interest in the Accounts and/or the debts represented by them, we will promptly notify you. The only Account[s] maintained with us [is] [are] the Specified Account[s] referred to in the Notice [and [of]]. This letter and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by English law. Yours faithfully	(c)	represented by them and to our knowledge there are no restrictions on the creation of Security
have any right or interest in the Accounts and/or the debts represented by them, we will promptly notify you. The only Account[s] maintained with us [is] [are] the Specified Account[s] referred to in the Notice [and [o]]. This letter and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by English law. Yours faithfully [name of bank]		of the Dormant Bank and Building Society Accounts Act 2008 and we agree that we will not so designate the [Specified] Account[s] or take any steps to transfer the balance standing to the credit of the [Specified] Account to the reclaim fund without the Security Agent's prior written
This letter and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by English law. Yours faithfully [name of bank]		
Yours faithfully [name of bank]	The only Accour	t[s] maintained with us [is] [are] the Specified Account[s] referred to in the Notice [and []].
[name of bank]		ny non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by English
[name of bank]	and the second second	
See Assembly Straightful	[name of bank]	

SCHEDULE 4

FORM OF NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT OF SPECIFIC CONTRACT

To: [insert name and address of counterparty]

[*]

Dear Sirs.

Re: [identify the Assigned Contract] (the "Document")

We give notice to you that [] (the "Chargor") has assigned in favour of [Wilmington Trust (London) Limited] (the "Security Agent") for the benefit of itself and certain other banks, financial institutions and other entities or persons (the "Secured Parties") all its right, title and interest in the Document as security for certain obligations owed by the Chargor to the Secured Parties pursuant to a debenture dated [•] made between [, amongst others,] the Chargor and [•] as Security Agent (the "Deed").

We further notify you that:

- 1. the Chargor shall remain entitled to exercise all its rights, powers and discretions under the Document, except that the Chargor shall not and you agree that the Chargor shall not, in any manner which could reasonably be expected to affect adversely the Secured Parties in any material respect, amend, supplement, vary or waive (or agree to amend, supplement, vary or waive) any provision of the Document or exercise any right to rescind, cancel or terminate the Document or give any consent under the Document without the prior written consent of the Security Agent;
- subject to paragraph (1) above you may continue to deal with the Chargor in relation to the Document until you receive written notice to the contrary from the Security Agent. Thereafter the Chargor will cease to have any right to deal with you in relation to the Document and therefore from that time you should deal only with the Security Agent;
- 3. you are authorised to disclose information in relation to the Document to the Security Agent on request;
- 4. following notice from the Security Agent that the security created under the Deed has become enforceable you must hold all sums from time to time due and payable by you to the Chargor under the Document to the order of the Security Agent;
- 5. you will pay or release all moneys to which the Chargor is entitled under the Document to the Chargor until the Security Agent directs otherwise;
- 6. the provisions of this notice may only be revoked with the written consent of the Security Agent;
- 7. you should continue to give notices under the Document to the Chargor, in each case unless and until you receive written notice from the Security Agent to the contrary, in which event all such rights, powers and discretions shall be exercisable by, and notices shall be given to, the Security Agent or as it directs; and
- 8. the Chargor will remain liable to perform all its obligations under the Document and neither the Security Agent nor any receiver, delegate or sub-delegate appointed by it shall at any time be under any obligation or liability to you under or in respect of the Document.
 - Please sign and return the enclosed copy of this notice to the Security Agent (with a copy to the Chargor) by way of confirmation that:
 - (a) you agree to the terms set out in this notice and to act in accordance with its provisions;

- (b) you have not received notice that the Chargor has assigned its rights under the Document to a third party or created any other interest (whether by way of security or otherwise) in the Document in favour of a third party;
- (c) you will pay any sums payable to the Chargor or any other person under or pursuant to the Document as directed by or pursuant to this notice or by the Security Agent; and
- (d) you do not have and will not exercise any rights of counterclaim or set-off in respect of any Document.

This letter and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by English law.

Yours faithfully

[insert name of Chargor(s)]	[name of Security Agent]
Ву	$\mathbf{B}\mathbf{y}$
Authorised Signatory	Authorised Signatory

Form of Acknowledgement of Notice of Assignment of Assigned Contract

To:	Wilmington Trust (London) Limited as trustee for the Secured Parties (the "Security Agent")
Copy to:	[insert name and address of [Chargor]]
We hereby a above.	icknowledge receipt of the above notice and confirm the matters set out in paragraphs 8(a) to 8(d)
la este delle en da especial de e	printerpolitica vec.
for and on b	chalf of
[insert name	of Counterparty]
Dated:	
cc. [Na	me of Chargor(s)]

SCHEDULE 5 FORM OF NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT OF INSURANCE POLICY

				-										
5°4		7	ě			Y								
Fo:	- 1	1111001		Arres.	237	111517	******							
1 - 1 - x	1.6	3.51.35.1	. A . A . E	XLY LC	1.7	47613611	CLUF I							

Date:

Dear Sirs

We give you notice that, by a Debenture dated [o] (the "Debenture"), we have assigned to [o] (the "Security Agent") as trustee for the Secured Parties all our right, title and interest in and to the proceeds of [insert details of relevant insurance policy] (the "Policy of Insurance").

With effect from your receipt of this notice we instruct and authorise you to:

- 1. make all payments and claims [in excess of t[*]] under or arising from the Policy of Insurance to the Security Agent [insert relevant account number and sort code] or to its order as it may specify in writing from time to time;
- 2. note the interest of the Security Agent on the Policy of Insurance; and
- disclose to the Security Agent, without further approval from us, such information regarding the Policy of Insurance as the Security Agent may from time to time request and to send it copies of all notices issued by you under the Policy of Insurance.

We will remain liable to perform all our obligations under the Policy of Insurance and the Security Agent is under no obligation of any kind whatsoever under the Policy of Insurance nor under any liability whatsoever in the event of any failure by us to perform our obligations under the Policy of Insurance.

With effect from your receipt of this notice all rights, interests and benefits whatsoever accruing to or for the benefit of ourselves arising from the Policy of Insurance (including all rights to compel performance) belong to and are exercisable by the Security Agent.

This letter and all non-contractual obligations arising out of or in conjunction with it are governed by and will be construed in accordance with the laws of England and Wales.

Please acknowledge receipt of this notice by signing the acknowledgement on the enclosed copy letter and returning it to the Security Agent at [o] marked for the attention of [o].

Yours faithfully,

for and on behalf of [Name of Chargor(s)]

Form of Acknowledgement of Assignment from Insurer

To: [as trustee for the Secured Parties (the "Security Agent")

Date:

Dear Sirs

We acknowledge receipt of a notice dated [*] in the terms set out above and confirm that we have not received notice of:

- (a) any assignment or charge of or over any of the rights, interests and benefits specified in such notice; or
- (b) the interest of any third party in any of the rights, interests and benefits specified in such notice.

and will make all payments in the manner and to the account specified in that notice. We confirm that we have made all necessary arrangements for all future payments payable under such Policy of Insurance, to be made into the account specified in the notice.

We further confirm that:

- no amendment, waiver or release or any such rights, interest and benefits will be effective without the prior written consent of the Security Agent;
- no termination of such rights, interests or benefits will be effective unless we have given the Security Agent 21 days' written notice of the proposed termination and specifying the action necessary to avoid such termination:
- 3. the Chargor will remain liable to perform all its obligations under the Policy of Insurance and the Security Agent is under no obligation of any kind whatsoever under the Policy of Insurance nor under any liability whatsoever in the event of any failure by the Chargor to perform its obligations under the Policy of Insurance; and
- 4. no breach or default on the part of the Chargor of any of the terms of such Policy of Insurance will be deemed to have occurred unless we have given notice of such breach to the Security Agent specifying how to make good such breach.

We unconditionally and irrevocably waive all rights of set-off, lien, combination of accounts and similar rights (however described) which we may have now or in the future to the extent that such rights relate to amounts owed to us by the Chargor (and the proceeds thereof) and we will send you copies of all statements, orders and notices given by us relating to such debt.

This letter and all non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it are governed by and will be construed in accordance with the laws of England and Wales.

Yours faithfully,

for and on behalf of [Name of Insurer]

cc. [Name of Chargor(s)]

SCHEDULE 6 FORM OF SECURITY ACCESSION DEED

THIS SECURITY ACCESSION DEED is made on [...].

(1)	, a company incorporated in England and Wales with registered number [*] (the "No Chargor");
(2)	[Parent] (the "Parent"); and
(3)	, as trustee for each of the Secured Parties on the terms and conditions set out in t

RECITAL:

BETWEEN:

This deed is supplemental to a debenture dated [9] 2014 between, amongst others, the Chargors named therein and the Security Agent, as previously supplemented and amended by earlier Security Accession Deeds (if any) (the "Debenture").

NOW THIS DEED WITNESSES as follows:

2. INTERPRETATION

2.1 Definitions

Unless otherwise expressly defined herein or the context otherwise requires, terms defined in the Debenture shall have the same meaning when used in this deed.

2.2 Construction

Clauses 1.2 (Intercreditor Agreement) to 1.11 (Third Party Rights) of the Debenture will be deemed to be set out in full in this deed, but as if references in those clauses to the Debenture were references to this deed.

The terms of Clause 6.1 (Negative pledge and restriction on dealings) of the Debenture are incorporated herein and shall be deemed to form part of this deed for the purposes of section 859D(2)(c) of the Companies Act 2006.

It is agreed that this deed is supplemental to the Debenture and to the extent the provisions of this deed conflict with those of the Debenture, the provisions of the Debenture shall prevail.

3. ACCESSION OF NEW CHARGOR

3.1 Accession

The New Chargor agrees to be a Chargor for the purposes of the Debenture with immediate effect and agrees to be bound by all of the terms of the Debenture as if it had originally been a party to it as a Chargor.

3.2 Covenant to pay

The New Chargor covenants with the Security Agent that it shall on demand of the Security Agent pay, discharge or satisfy the Secured Obligations when they fall due and payable in accordance with the terms of the Secured Debt Documents, and indemnify the Security Agent and each of the Secured Parties

against any losses, costs, charges, expenses and liabilities arising from any breach or failure to pay, discharge and satisfy the Secured Obligations in accordance with their respective terms, provided that neither such covenant nor the Security created by the Debenture shall extend to or include any liability or sum which would, but for this proviso, cause such covenant or Security to be unlawful or prohibited by any applicable law.

3.3 Creation of Charges

All Security and assignments under this deed are:

- (a) created in favour of the Security Agent as trustee for the Secured Parties and the Security Agent shall hold the benefit of this Deed and the Security created by or pursuant to them on trust for the Secured Parties; and
- (b) continuing Security for the payment and discharge of all Secured Obligations.

3.4 Fixed Security

The New Chargor charges:

(a) Fixed charge over Real Property

The New Chargor charges, by way of first fixed charge, all of its rights, title and interest from time to time in and to all the Real Property and all Related Rights, except for:

- (i) leasehold interests of less than 15 years unless the lease contains an option to acquire the freehold which has a market value of £2,500,000 or more; or
- (ii) freehold interests which have a market value of less than £2,500,000.

(b) Fixed charge over Tangible Moveable Property

The New Chargor charges, by way of first fixed charge, all of its rights, title and interest from time to time in and to the Tangible Moveable Property and all Related Rights.

(c) Fixed charge over Monetary Claims

The New Chargor charges, by way of first fixed charge, all of its rights, title and interest from time to time in and to all Monetary Claims and all Related Rights other than any claims which are otherwise subject to a fixed charge or assignment (at law or in equity) pursuant to this Deed.

(d) Fixed charge over contracts

The New Chargor charges, by way of first fixed charge, all of its rights, title and interest from time to time in and to any contract or agreement (except for the Specific Contracts to the extent validly and effectively assigned pursuant to Clause 3.4(k) (Assignment of Specific Contracts)), each of its interest or currency rate swap, cap, floor, collar or option transactions and all Related Rights.

(c) Fixed charge over Investments

The New Chargor charges, by way of first fixed charge, all of its rights, title and interest from time to time in and to the Investments and all dividends, interest and other monies payable in respect of those Investments and all Related Rights (whether derived by way of redemption, bonus, preference, options, substitution, conversion, compensation or otherwise).

(f) Fixed charge over Shares

The New Chargor charges, by way of first fixed charge, all of its rights, title and interest from time to time in and to the Shares and all dividends, interest and other monies payable in respect of those Shares and all Related Rights (whether derived by way of redemption, bonus, preference, options, substitution, conversion, compensation or otherwise).

(g) Fixed charge over goodwill

The New Chargor charges, by way of first fixed charge, all of its rights, title and interest from time to time in and to any goodwill, rights and claims in relation to the uncalled capital.

(h) Fixed charge over Accounts

The New Chargor charges by way of first fixed charge all its rights, title and interest present and future in and to Accounts and all Related Rights.

(i) Fixed charge over Intellectual Property

The New Chargor charges by way of first fixed charge all its rights, title and interest present and future in and to Intellectual Property and all Related Rights.

(j) Fixed charge over Insurance Policies

The New Chargor charges, by way of first fixed charge, all of its rights, title and interest from time to time in and to each Insurance Policy (except to the extent validly and effectively assigned pursuant to Clause 3.4(1) (Assignment of Insurance Policies)) and all Related Rights.

(k) Assignment of Specific Contracts

The New Chargor assigns and agrees to assign absolutely, all of its rights, claims, title and interest from time to time in and to the Specific Contracts and all Related Rights.

(l) Assignment of Insurance Policies

The New Chargor assigns and agrees to assign absolutely, all of its rights, claims, title and interest from time to time in and to the proceeds of each Insurance Policy and all Related Rights.

3.5 Floating Charge

The New Chargor charges by way of first floating Charge its present and future undertaking and all its assets other than any asset effectively mortgaged, charged or assigned under Clause 3.4 (Fixed Security), except to the extent the grant of such floating charge would be unlawful or require the consent of any person other than a member of the Group or any Holding Company of the Parent.

4. CONSENT OF EXISTING CHARGORS

The Parent, for itself and as agent for each of the other Chargors under the Debenture, agrees to the terms of this deed and agrees that its execution will in no way prejudice or affect the Security granted by each of them under (and covenants and undertakings given by each of them in) the Debenture.

5. CONSTRUCTION OF DEBENTURE

The Debenture and this deed shall be read together as one instrument on the basis that references in the Debenture to "this Deed" will be deemed to include this deed.

6. NOTICES

The New Chargor confirms that its address details for notices in relation to Clause 28 (Notices) of the Debenture are as follows:

Address: [0]

Attention: [0]

7. COUNTERPARTS

This deed may be executed in any number of counterparts and this has the same effect as if the signature on the counterparts were on a single copy of this deed.

8. GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION

8.1 This deed is governed by and shall be construed in accordance with English law. Any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with this deed are governed by English law.

The courts of England have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute (a 'Dispute') arising out of, or in connection with this Deed or any Legal Charge (including a dispute relating to the existence, validity or termination of this Deed or any Legal Charge or the consequences of its nullity or any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with this Deed or any Legal Charge).

The parties agree that the courts of England are the most appropriate and convenient courts to settle any Disputes between them and accordingly no party shall argue to the contrary.

IN WITNESS whereof this deed has been duly executed and delivered on the date first above written.

SIGNATORIES

New Chargor	
EXECUTED AS A I	
Name:	
Title:	
in the presence of:	The section of the se
Signature of witness:	
Name: Occupation:	
	a a digiri da a programa de come a d
Address:	***************************************
	outh specific himse pour house a bound a constant con-
	i soosiiras eesesoosii aaraa soo ii
Parent EXECUTED AS A I TSL EDUCATION	
Name:	
Title:	
in the presence of:	ting and the property of the state of the section o
Signature of witness:	
Name:	- en gapan en
Occupation:	. તે તે કે સામાર્થ કે
Address:	en en en elegante el
	्राप्त हुन में बीच एक वर्ष कर महासीने हैं वर्ष सम्बन्ध देवां निवासी है जान
	The entropy of the entropy of the entropy of the

The Security Ag	ent	
EXECUTED AS	A DEED BY OF SECURITY AGENT)
acting by:)
under the authori	ty of that entity, in the presence of:)
Witness:	and the second s	
Name:	i na antoni a come de estado estado estado en partega.	
Address:	y may be apply a proper find a state of the following and be proper for the state of the state o	

EXECUTION PAGE TO DEBENTURE

:	The Chargors					٠.
	EXECUTED AS A D		•)		
	Name: Man	Julet of		j		d .
	Title: Director	Burneye, e.e.); ·		•
	in the presence of:					
: :	Signature of witness:		*****			
	Name:		4(z	≟		
:	Occupation:					
	Address:					
			:			4.4.
					<u> 14 - 4 4 - </u>	5.5. -
	EXECUTED AS A I	DEED BY GROUP LIMITED			. (1	5.5. -
	EXECUTED AS A ITSL EDUCATION Name:	DEED BY GROUP LIMITED			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
	TSL EDUCATION	DEED BY GROUP LIMITED				
	Name: //	DEED BY GROUP LIMITED				
	Name: Vitle: Director in the presence of:	GROUP LIMITED				
	TSL EDUCATION Name: Title: Director	GROUP LIMITED				
	Name: 1. Title: Director in the presence of: Signature of witness:	GROUP LIMITED				
	Name: // Title: Director in the presence of: Signature of witness: Name: Occupation:	GROUP LIMITED				
	Name: // Title: Director in the presence of: Signature of witness: Name:	GROUP LIMITED				
	Name: // Title: Director in the presence of: Signature of witness: Name: Occupation:	GROUP LIMITED				

EXECUTED AS A DEED BY TSL EDUCATION SPV 2 LIMITED		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Name: Manufactor	i	
in the presence of:	•	
Signature of witness;		
Name: UMALD STADLES		
Occupation:		
Address:		
EXECUTED AS A DEED BY TSL EDUCATION SPV 3 LIMITED		
Name: A Julium		
Title: Director	3:	
in the presence of		
Signature of witness: Name:		
Occupation:		
Address:		

EXECUTED AS A DEED BY TSL EDUCATION SPV 4 LIMITED Name: Title: Director in the presence of: Signature of witness: . none Peris Name: Occupation: Address: EXECUTED AS A DEED BY TES FINANCE PLC Name: Director Title: in the presence of: Signature of witness: . Trace Trace. Name: Occupation: Address:

EXECUTED AS A 1	DEED BY HOLDINGS LIMITE) : D	en e
Name:			
Title: Director)	
in the presence of:	्रा विकास विकास विकास विकास का साम स्वापः	हार्थक दे के वर्ष सहार वि	
Signature of witness:		eteretisket.	
Name:	penak		
Occupation:			
Address:			
EXECUTED AS A I TSL EDUCATION Name:	DEED BY FINANCE LIMITED		
Title: Director		<i>,</i>	
in the presence of:	***************	EX 23: 15 E * Y F	
Signature of witness:		00 ►1	
Name:	DEWALLER		
Occupation:			
Address:			

EXECUTED AS A I	DEED BY ACQUISITION LIMITED)		
Name:	Moderne)		
Title: Director)		
in the presence of:				
Signature of witness:	in and a second			
Name:	Division Elegate			
Occupation				
Address:		-		
		- -		
EXECUTED AS A L)		
Name:	10000000)		
Title: Director))		
in the presence of:	 દિશ્વ સ્થાનક માણક અફેલ્ટર ફક્કેલ્ટર કે કે તેને કેટલ નાક કેટ્ટર સ્થાન	•	·	
Signature of witness:	in the second se			
Name:	DESAID DAY	<u>.</u> .		
Occupation:				
Address:				
		÷.		

EXECUTED AS A I)
Name:	MUSULLIA	
Title: Director		
in the presence of:		
Signature of witness:	May san	
Name:	DEWIG EROSS	eik.
Occupation:	: 	• * • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
Address:	4.	
	1. 1. 1.	
EXECUTED AS A LINURSERY WORLD Name: Title: Director		
in the presence of:		
Signature of witness:	en element	
Name:	DANUE LA LEVERNICA	
Occupation:		
Address:		

	EED BY ATIONAL SUPPLEMENT)	
LIMITED)	
Name:	Takit itti ala sesenti e ili)	
Title: Director	· ·)	
in the presence of:	e analysis kay rangang iskay sarren yarirek		
Signature of witness:			
Name:	přem Aradass		
Occupation:			
Address:			
			<u>.</u>
	•		•
	na ara- Na ara-ara-ara-ara-		·
EXECUTED AS A D	EED BY US HOLDINGS LIMITED)	
Name:	Jacker Jake	ý	
Title: Director)	
in the presence of:	14 FN 3441 E X 7 44 N 7 441 N E X 7 4 8 E 7 7 7 11 11 11 1		
Signature of witness:	in the second se		
Name:	ONNO EKWA		
Occupation:		**. . *	
Address:			

EXECUTED AS A	DEED BY		:.:
	DUCATION LIMITED)		
Name:			
Title: Director).		
in the presence of:	**************************************		. Y.
Signature of witness	Y see		
Name:	WINLO BEGALE.		
Occupation:	· · ·		
Address:			
	t.e		
	: 4. ::		
EXECUTED AS A			
	XHIBITIONS LIMITED)		
Name:			
Title: Director			•
in the presence of:		•	
Signature of witness	en e		
Name:	DEN KR. EX GRAN		
Occupation:			
Address:			

EXECUTED AS A	A DEED BY LACKBOARD LIMITED)	
Name:	Molsverva)	
Title: Director)	
in the presence of:	व्यक्ति व तक र वर्षक्ति कर कार्यक्ति व स्थान व स्थानिक व स्थानिक व		
Signature of witnes	SS		
Name:		· ·	
Occupation:			
Address:			
EXECUTED AS ATHE TIMES SUPPLEMENT L	HIGHER EDUCATION	() ()	:.
Name: Title: Director		.): :): ::)::	
in the presence of:	કાર કરો અને અંગ સ્ટ્રેલિંગ કરે અને કે ફિર્મિલ્ટ કે અસ્ટ્રેલિંગ કે અસ્ટ્રેલિંગ કે અસ્ટ્રેલિંગ કે અસ્ટ્રેલિંગ કે		
Signature of witnes			
Name:	WWW. EKWAC		
Occupation:			

EXECUTED AS A DEED BY TES SUPPLY LIMITED Name: Title: Director in the presence of: Signature of witness: Name: DANOLIBARA VA Occupation: Address: EXECUTED AS A DEED BY TES BIDCO LIMITED Name: Title: Director in the presence of: Signature of witness: Name: Occupation: Address:

EXECUTED AS A DEED BY VISION FOR EDUCATION LIMITED Name: Title: Director in the presence of: Signature of witness: Name: Occupation: Address: EXECUTED AS A DEED BY TES EDUCATION RESOURCES LIMITED Name: Title: Director in the presence of: Signature of witness: . Divide area b. Name: Occupation: Address:

EXECUTED AS A DEED BY ENGLISHTEACHING.CO.UK LTD

Name:

Modelling

Title: Director

in the presence of:

Signature of witness: ...

Name: Physical Legyles

Occupation:

Address:

The Security Agent EXECUTED AS A DEED by WILMINGTON TRUST (LONDON) LIMITED acting by under the authority of that entity, in the presence of: Witness: Name: Biko Twesime Address: